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Our Presence

Ellipsiz (Shanghai) International Ltd

Ellipsiz SemiLab Shanghai Co, Ltd
(in the process of incorporation)

Ellipsiz Semiconductor Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd

TAIWAN

Ellipsiz Ltd

Ellipsiz Singapore Pte Ltd

Ellipsiz MicroFab Pte Ltd

Ellipsiz ISP Pte Ltd

Ellipsiz Test Pte Ltd

Ellipsiz Ventures Pte Ltd

SV Probe Pte Ltd

Ellipsiz Taiwan Second Source Inc

Ellipsiz Taiwan Inc

SV Probe Taiwan, Co, Ltd

Ellipsiz Malaysia Sdn Bhd
(Penang - Malaysia head office)

Ellipsiz Malaysia Sdn Bhd
(Kuala Lumpur - Malaysia branch office)

Factech Semiconductors Sdn Bhd

CHINA

MALAYSIA

SINGAPORE

VIETNAM SV Probe Vietnam, Co, Ltd

USA SV Probe Inc
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Financial Highlights
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FY04 FY03 FY02

Debtors turnover (days) 84.00 73.00 167.00
Debt / equity (%) 10.33 2.87 6.38
Working capital ratio 3.84 3.27 2.83
Quick ratio 3.66 3.05 2.64
EPS - Basic (cents)  3.88              (7.97) (11.79)
EPS - Diluted (cents) 3.85            (7.97) (11.79)
Net Assets Value per share (cents)  30.27 19.30 27.38

FY04 FY03 FY02

Revenue Wafer Fab 93.42 93.48 94.30

Test & Advanced Packaging 6.58 6.50 5.51

Fabless - 0.02 0.19

Others - - -

Total 100.00  100.00 100.00

Gross profit/(loss) Wafer Fab 94.65  180.43 348.23

Test & Advanced Packaging 5.35 (80.73) (243.80)

Fabless - 0.30 (4.43)

Others - - -

Total 100.00  100.00 100.00

Cash and cash equivalents Wafer Fab 22.48  46.83 56.55

Test & Advanced Packaging 1.10  1.17 2.85

Fabless 0.04 0.07 0.22

Others 76.38  51.93 40.38

Total 100.00  100.00 100.00

Financial Ratios (Group)

Contribution by Business Segment (%)

Financial Highlights

4
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Letter To Our Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

The financial year ended 30 June 2004 (“FY04”) has indeed been a very challenging period for us. After two years
of intensive restructuring, remodeling our growth engines, austere cost-cutting measures and countless sacrifices
on the part of our employees, we are proud to have delivered on our earlier commitment to bring the company back
to profitability.

Revenues reached  $69.5 million, and profit after tax and minority interests soared to $8.2 million, representing a
36% and 152% improvement respectively over the last financial year’s (“FY03”) performance. Discounting the
write-back of $6.9 million, $1.3 million of income from our core operations registered an improvement of about
150%.

Last year, we presented to you our strategies to propel us back on the growth track.  We have restructured ourselves
to be leaner and more responsive to our competitive environment. To develop greater depth and a sustainable
growth model, we are licensing our proprietary wafer bump process, redefining and strengthening core competencies
within the  Wafer Fab Solutions division, and developing new complementary businesses with high growth potential.
Our unwavering focus on execution of these strategies has enabled us to optimise on the opportunities resulting
from the long-awaited semiconductor equipment recovery in early 2004.

Licensing Ellipsiz’s Wafer Bump Process
In September 2004, China’s leading foundry, Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (“SMIC”), became
our first customer for a technology license and a turnkey wafer bump line to be installed in their Shanghai fab. SMIC
selected us because our process produced superior stability, scalability and yields. Our process capabilities were
also recognised by major global fabless players such as Broadcom and NetLogic Microsystems, who had qualified us
for some of their most advanced designs.

As part of the agreement, SMIC purchased US$5 million of equipment from us for their new line.  With the successful
transfer of the turnkey line in August 2004, we expect to book a further $2.5 million in revenue, including a
technology license fee, in FY05. Royalties are also slated to come on stream next year.  With our market-tested
capabilities and an excellent technology transfer team, we are well-poised to gain a bigger business footprint in this
niche market.

Redefining Core Competencies in Wafer Fab Solutions
We have developed our core competencies in this sector from our decade-long experience as a distributor
of sophisticated semiconductor equipment and materials, particularly to the “front-end” wafer fabs. From servicing
our fab customers and principals, we have accumulated expertise in lithography, quality and reliability assurance,
and facilities and sub-fab management.  These were reflected in our Wafer Fab Solutions division’s contribution of
over 90% to our revenues in FY04 and FY03 respectively.

We have restructured ourselves to be leaner and more responsive
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As part of our recovery plan, we have rebuilt Ellipsiz into a nimble, customer-focused enterprise. During the year,
we continued to reshape our high-potential product lines for growth and profitability. We were well-poised to
capitalise on the upsurge in economic activities in early 2004 and increased our revenue in this Division by 36%.

One of our strategic efforts in recent years has been to improve our recurring revenues over our non-recurring
revenues. Our over-dependence on non-recurring revenue sources made us vulnerable to the cyclical momentum of
our industry.  While pleased with the rise in the level of sales and profits, we were even more gratified that recurring
income constituted 53% of total revenue in FY04, compared to 46% in FY03. Our lithography, materials, spare
parts and chemical business units were the primary contributors to this healthy trend.

Developing New Business Engines
Our core distribution business has provided a foundation for growth, and enabled us to keep intimately in touch
with the pulse and new technologies in our industry.  We have been hard at work over the last two years to develop
complementary business engines apart from distribution, to mitigate the volatility and “lumpiness” of our revenue
flows and to sustain our growth in the years ahead.  This is especially critical in the light of the ongoing consolidation
of equipment manufacturers and fabs, the often-disruptive changes in business models and value chain, and the
increasing frequency and amplitude of swings in the business cycles. Accordingly, we have further broadened our
business model to embrace the following new business engines:

PROBE CARDS  In August 2003, we collaborated with US probe card solutions provider, SV Probe Holding, to form
an Asian manufacturing and distribution joint venture arm, SV Probe Asia. Our manufacturing facilities in Ho Chi
Minh City, Vietnam are supplying probe cards to the US and Taiwan markets. Our key customers are the system and
fabless design companies and backend test houses. SV Probe is currently ranked world number six in this field.
To further strengthen our alliance and exploit the market potentials, we increased our shareholding in SV Probe Asia
to 50 % in August 2004.  SV Probe Asia in turn acquired an investment in SV Probe Inc.

Going forward, we expect this new business to grow and be a significant revenue driver. We are building our
capabilities in higher-end probe products including vertical, membrane, spring and MEMS technologies to meet the
demand for the testing of the latest computer logic and memory chips found in the latest generation of handsets,
smart devices and networks.

We have rebuilt Ellipsiz into a nimble, customer-focused enterprise



7

Xavier Chong Chairman & CEO Foo See Liang Co-Chairman
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WAFER RECLAIM In March 2004, we raised our stake in Singapore-based wafer reclaim specialist, International
Semiconductor Products, now known as Ellipsiz ISP Pte. Ltd. (“EISP”), from 17% to 67%, to add to our palette of
solutions for wafer fab customers in the region. Wafer reclaim is a niche manufacturing service which recycles
wafers used by fabs to test their equipment and fab processes before a production run. As fabs rationalise their cost
drivers due to downward margin pressures, we see good potential in this recycling solutions market. We aim to be
a significant regional player in this niche market.  To strengthen our competitive position, we integrated our recycling
solutions with our newly-started refurbishment business for vacuum pumps and equipment parts cleaning to offer
a more comprehensive service to our customers.

QUALIFICATION AND RELIABILITY SERVICES In May 2004, we partnered with the Shanghai government- and
industry-linked IC R&D (“Shanghai ICRD”) Centre and Chiron SemiLab to provide qualification and reliability testing
services to the semiconductor industry in Shanghai.  The new laboratory to be set up, Ellipsiz SemiLab Shanghai,
will leverage on Shanghai ICRD’s domain expertise in Radio Frequency (“RF”) and High Frequency (“HF”) testing, and
Chiron SemiLab’s expertise in reliability solutions. Our capability in both high-end digital and analogue domains is
particularly suited to the Shanghai semiconductor cluster with its growing influx of fabless designers and manufacturers.

Moving Forward
We believe that semiconductors will continue to be a growth industry, fueled by demand for smarter, faster, smaller,
friendlier end products, devices and controllers. However, it is a competitive landscape characterised by the following
key challenges:

• achieving a balance between supply and demand throughout the semiconductor business chain, given the
immense difficulty in forecasting interlinked, volatile and vulnerable global markets;

• the enormous size and “lumpiness” of capital investments and capacity - especially with the advent of 300mm
fabs - which  may result in increased lead times to requirements fulfillment, or extended lull periods for new
requirements during capacity oversupply situations;

• the continuous consolidation and reinvention in business models that are forced on designers, equipment
makers, fabs, foundries, test houses and system houses which may evolve and result in the introduction of new
technologies and new players that may drastically change the competitive landscape.

We need to be constantly on our toes to scan for business opportunities and to act swiftly and decisively to exploit
them with new and innovative value propositions for our customers. We need to stay close to current customers
and partners, to anticipate their needs. At the same time, we need to widen our network, and reach out to new
players such as China’s fabless designers, who may become significant forces in tomorrow’s markets. As we aim
for growth, we must keep our structure lean to be responsive to the markets, and resilient during a slowdown in
our industry.

We must keep our structure lean to be responsive and resilient
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In Conclusion
Besides our efforts in rebuilding our businesses, we have also taken steps to further strengthen our governance
structure. We welcome our new Director, Mr. Phoon Wai Meng, Vice-President and General Manager of Agilent
Technologies Singapore, who has graciously accepted our invitation to join the Board as an Independent Director
and to serve on its Remuneration and Nominating Committees, from July 2004.

We would like to take this opportunity to thank our Directors for their support and guidance.  We also want to thank
our business partners for their support and valuable feedback and suggestions on our services. And we want to say
a heartfelt “Thank You” to all our people, who have supported us on the cost control and restructuring initiatives.
Without their loyalty and commitment, we could not have achieved the milestones that we have targeted in the last
two years.

Finally, we want to thank you, our shareholders, for your patience with us, believing in us and persevering with us.
With the Board of Directors’ approval and your support, the Company will be paying a dividend of 0.6875 cents per
ordinary share which constitutes 2.75% of par value, less tax at 20%. This dividend is by no means representative
of our shareholders’ deserving reward, but reflects the Board’s and management’s philosophy and belief in sharing
our profits with our shareholders.

We look to the new year ahead with cautious optimism, very much aware of the uncertainties that lie ahead and the
work that remains to be done with both core and new businesses. Once again, our mantra for FY05, as in FY04,
is “excellence in execution”. We look forward to delivering another good report to you next year.

We have taken steps to further strengthen our governance structure

Xavier Chong Foo See Liang
Chairman & CEO Co-Chairman
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Board of Directors

In 1999, the Group, then known as SingaTrust, was
recognized as a winner in Singapore’s prestigious Enterprise
50 Awards. In July 2000, Mr. Chong listed the holding
company on the main board of the Singapore Exchange,
and subsequently effected a name change to Ellipsiz Ltd.
In 2001, he decided to take a one-year sabbatical from his
Executive Chairman position to pursue his own interests,
but returned in May 2002 at the request of the Board of
Directors to helm the Group as Chairman and CEO.

Mr. Chong has served as a sub-committee member in the
development and strategic planning of Singapore 21 for
the Electronics and Semiconductor Section. Singapore 21 is
the vision of Singapore in the 21st century.

A Chartered Accountant by training, Dr. Foo was a
Director of a CPA firm. He is Fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales (UK)
and a Member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore. He was a National University
of Singapore Overseas Graduates Scholar. He has a
Bachelor of Commerce degree from the University
of New South Wales (Australia) and a doctorate
(Accountancy) degree from the University of Hull (UK).
In 1993, he attended the Senior Executives Programme
at the Sloan School of Management, MIT (USA).

Ms. Lim graduated from the National University of
Singapore with a Bachelor of Accountancy. She also
holds an MBA in Strategic Marketing from the
University of Hull, UK; a Postgraduate Diploma in
Marketing from the Chartered Institute of Marketing,
UK; and a Diploma in company secretarial matters
from the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators, UK.

Ms. Lim is a member of the Institute of Certified Public
Accountants of Singapore, the Chartered Institute of
Marketing (UK) and the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators (UK).

Dr. Foo See Liang

Dr. Foo See Liang is the Co-Chairman of the Board.
He was appointed as an Independent Director on 14th
June 2000.  Dr. Foo is currently an Associate Professor
in the Nanyang Business School (NBS), Nanyang
Technological University (NTU). He is an Academic
Board Member of the Productivity Standards Board
(PSB) Academy (Singapore).

Lim May Lan

Lim May Lan joined the Ellipsiz Group at the beginning
of 2000 as CFO. She was appointed as an Executive
Director on 16 November 2001. She was formerly the
CFO of Zagro Asia Limited, a company listed in the
SGX-ST, and the Financial Controller of United Leasing
and Services Pte. Ltd., an associate company of Scott
& English (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd during 1991 to 1999.
Prior to joining the commercial sector, Ms. Lim spent
10 years of her career with two international public
accounting firms, namely, Arthur Young and Deloitte
& Touche.

Xavier Chong Fook Choy

Mr. Chong is the Chairman and CEO of Ellipsiz.  He founded
the Group in 1992 at age 30, with the establishment of its
first company, ESI, to distribute QRA (Quality, Reliability and
Assurance) instruments and services to wafer manufacturing
plants (commonly known as “fabs”) in Singapore. Prior to
becoming an entrepreneur, Mr. Chong was the Service &
Sales Manager of Leica Pte. Ltd.

He soon extended his reach into the distribution of wafer
fab process equipment, materials, and facility management
for the industry, both in Singapore and the South East
Asia region. In 1996, with the distribution services business
achieving its own momentum, he ventured into manufacturing
services, investing in a wafer reclaim plant to serve the region.
He then embarked on developing a wafer bumping service,
which is an integral process for advanced IC packaging,
through a subsidiary, MicroFab.
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Mathew Chan Chung Shin

Matthew Chan Chung Shin was appointed as an
Independent Director of the Group on 14 June 2000.
He has extensive general management experience in
the high-tech electronics industry in the Asia Pacific
region.  Mr. Chan is currently the President of Asia
Pacific and Corporate Senior Vice-President in Cadence
Design Systems, Inc., San Jose, US.  He manages the
entire Cadence Asia Pacific business except Japan,
with a focus on customer satisfaction, team efforts,
communication, long-term business strategies, and
partnerships with local industries. Prior to joining

In his more than 25 years of senior management
experience with Hewlett-Packard Singapore and
Agilent Technologies Singapore, Mr. Phoon has
overseen the design, manufacturing and test and
assembly of high-performance ASIC products. He was
involved in setting up one of the first IC design centres
in Singapore in 1987.

Mr. Phoon graduated from Monash University, Australia
with a Bachelor of Electrical/Electronics Engineering.
Currently, he also serves as a Board member of
Chartered Silicon Partners Pte Ltd.

He was formerly the Vice-President/General Manager
of Wafer Fab Operations, Fabs 2 and 3, and Chartered
Silicon Partners Pte. Ltd. at Chartered Semiconductor
Manufacturing Ltd. from 1996 to 1999. Prior to this
Mr. Hodgman was with Silicon Systems, Inc. for 14
years and left as Vice-President World-wide Wafer Fab/
Foundry Operations.

Mr. Hodgman graduated from the University of Utah
with a Bachelor of Science degree and a Master of
Science degree in Electrical Engineering.

Due to his recent promotion and enlarged portfolio,
Mr. Hodgman resigned from the Board with effect from
August 31, 2004.

11

Rick Kenneth Hodgman

Rick Kenneth Hodgman was appointed as an
Independent Director on 14 June 2000. Mr. Hodgman
is currently the Vice President and Managing Director
for Asia Operations of Broadcom Singapore Pte. Ltd.

Phoon Wai Meng

Phoon Wai Meng was appointed as an Independent
Director on 1 July 2004. Mr. Phoon is currently
the Vice President/ General Manager of Agilent
Technologies Singapore, where he oversees the High
Speed IC Operation. He was with Hewlett-Packard
Singapore for over 20 years, before the spin-off of
Agilent Technologies from the company.

Cadence Design Systems, Inc., Mr. Chan was the
President of Asia, Novellus Systems Inc., San Jose from
1994 to 1999.  Between 1980 and 1994, Mr. Chan
was with Tektronix Inc., responsible for functional areas
such as engineering, manufacturing, sales, marketing,
operations and regional management of China/HK/
South Asia.

Mr. Chan graduated from Chung Yuan University,
Chung-Li, Taiwan with a Bachelor Degree of Industrial
Engineering.  He holds a Master of Computer-Aided
Manufacturing from Brigham Young University, Provo,
Utah, and was a PhD candidate of Sales and Marketing,
University of South Australia, Adelaide, South Australia.
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Key Executives

Ong Puay Han

Ong Puay Han is the President of Ellipsiz’s Wafer Fab Solutions Division and oversees operations in Singapore, Malaysia,
Taiwan and China. He has 14 years of experience in the semiconductor industry. Besides managing Ellipsiz’s Wafer Fab Distribution
business, he is also responsible for developing integrated solutions such as Facilities, Reclaim and Qualification & Reliability.
These integrated solutions are rich in IP competencies and have the potential to grow to become global companies.  He also plays
a key role in the development of the China market. Mr. Ong first joined Ellipsiz five years ago as the General Manager of its Wafer
Fab Engineering Services Division. He was previously the Regional Business Unit Manager for KLA-Tencor. He holds a Master
of Science and a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering from the University of Arkansas, and a Diploma in Chemical
Process Technology from Singapore Polytechnic. He has also completed the Management Development Program at Harvard
Business School.

Dr. Freddy Goh

Dr. Freddy Goh is the Founder & Managing Director of Ellipsiz ISP (“EISP”), formerly known as International Semiconductor Products
(“ISP”). The company manufactures reclaimed wafers which are used by wafer fabs for equipment qualification, testing and monitoring
purposes, and operates Singapore’s only wafer reclaim plant. Dr. Goh has more than 15 years of experience in the semiconductor
industry. Prior to starting ISP, he was a Research Fellow with GINTIC Institute of Manufacturing Technology from May 1995 to March
1996. During this period, Dr. Goh helped map out the Surface Technology Group’s five-year development plan, identified new areas of
thin and thick film applications and set up wet plating lines for metallization, plating, electroforming and anodizing. From January 1993
to April 1995, Dr. Goh was based in the US with Texas Instruments as a Productization Engineer and was part of the start-up team for
Twinstar Semiconductor and DP1/DMOSS fab. Dr. Goh holds a Ph.D in Electrical Engineering from the University of Arkansas.

Roger Li

Roger Li is responsible for business development, and is the General Manager for China.  He facilitates the customization of the
Company’s integrated solutions for China’s semiconductor industry clusters and research laboratories. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the electronics industry, covering both the private and public sectors across China. Mr. Li was previously the
General Manager of Silicon International, where he developed the sales and service divisions. He has a Bachelor’s degree in
Semiconductor Technology from China Southeast University, Nanjing, and a Diploma in Physics from Mainz University, Germany.

Raymond Chin

Raymond Chin is the Director (Acting) of Public and Investor Relations. He is also the Vice President of Business Development tasked
with nurturing selected new businesses under incubation within the Group. Mr. Chin has more than 15 years of experience in the
semiconductor industry. He joined Ellipsiz in November 1999 as the General Manager of its Quality and Reliability Analysis division.
Prior to that, he was with Motorola’s Semiconductor Products Sector in a variety of functions - namely Demand Management and
Service Program Manager, Country Manager for the Philippines, Business Planning Manager and Distribution Sales Manager for South
East Asia. In the earlier part of his career, Mr. Chin was with Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing in Quality and Reliability Assurance
and Customer Engineering.
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• Chemicals hook-up• Turn-key full utilities
hook-up project
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Core Businesses for FY04

• Transfer of wafer bump
technology to SMIC

During the financial year ended 30 June 2004 (“FY04”), we reorganised and adopted a new business structure, comprising three main

divisions - Fabless Solutions, Wafer Fab Solutions and Test & Advanced Packaging Solutions. These divisions operate in niche areas and are

expected to generate recurring revenues, thus better positioning us to ride out the industry cycles.

We have entered into a joint-venture
with SV Probe Holding, a leading
provider of probe card solutions,
to form SV Probe Asia.

• Cantilever
probe card

• Vertical-style/
SV2 probe card

• Polishing templates
used in wafer reclaim

• Wafer scan in Class 1
cleanroom

• Gain boundary diffusion

• Rate of hot
carrier trapping

• Drain side

• Reliability
qualification
- TDDB

Our reliability testing services
include test structures design

• Reclaim
• Wafer Reclaim
• Pumps Refurbishment
• Parts Clean

• Facilities

• Qualification & Reliability

• Distribution

• Wafer Bump

13

• Supply Chain
Management

• Design Test

• Probe Cards

Fabless
Solutions

Wafer Fab
Solutions

Test & Advanced
Packaging Solutions
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We have entered the probe card business
through our JV with SV Probe Holding,
a leader provider of probe card solutions

With the acquisition of International
Semiconductor Products (“ISP”) in March,
we have now added wafer reclaim to our palette
of integrated solutions for wafer fab customers

FY04 Key Events

May 28, 2004
Set up commercial IC test laboratory
in collaboration with Chiron
SemiLab and Dr. Qian Dahong,
at the government-linked
Shanghai ICRD Centre.

June 28, 2004
Entered into an agreement to inject
S$13.2 million into SV Probe Asia,
raising our stake from 40% to 50%.
The transaction was completed on
August 3, 2004.  The expanded JV
currently includes SV Probe Inc. in the
US, and the probe card business now
spans Vietnam, Singapore, Taiwan,
China and the US.

August 7, 2003
Joint venture with SV Probe Holding
to provide probe card solutions.

August 12, 2003
Signed Letter of Intent to partner
with China government agency,
the National IC Design and Industrial
Base (Shenzhen) institution.

September 24, 2003
SMIC of China became first licensee of
our proprietary wafer bump process.

December 11, 2003
Acquired one-third stake in
Chiron SemiLab Pte. Ltd.,
which provides reliability and
failure analysis testing services.

China’s most advanced foundry, SMIC,
has become the first customer and licensee
of our wafer bump technology

February 19, 2004
Incorporated Ellipsiz Semiconductor
Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd to support
the IC design industry in Shenzhen.

February 23, 2004
Raised S$25.2m from the placement
of 39 million new shares to
institutional investors.

March 1, 2004
Acquired wafer reclaim specialist,
International Semiconductor Products,
now known as Ellipsiz ISP (“EISP”).

March 17-19, 2004
Exhibited in Semicon China.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Ellipsiz Ltd (the “Company”) is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and ensures that effective self-regulatory corporate practices exist to protect the interest of its shareholders.

The Company endeavours to adopt corporate governance practices that are in conformity with the principles and best
practices set out in the Best Practices Guide pursuant to Rule 710(2) of the Listing Manual of the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST”).

The Company’s corporate governance processes and activities for the financial year are outlined below.

BOARD MATTERS

Board of Directors
The Board comprised the following members in the financial year:

Mr. Chong Fook Choy (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lim May Lan (Executive Director)
Dr. Foo See Liang (Co-Chairman and Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Jeffrey Staszak (Non-Executive Director) *
Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman (Non-Executive Director) *

* Mr. Jeffrey Staszak resigned on 26 November 2003 and Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman resigned on 31 August 2004.

On 1 July 2004, Mr. Phoon Wai Meng joined the Board as Non-Executive Director.

As of the date of the report, the Board members are:

Mr. Chong Fook Choy (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lim May Lan (Executive Director)
Dr. Foo See Liang (Co-Chairman and Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin (Non-Executive Director)
Mr. Phoon Wai Meng (Non-Executive Director)

The Board’s Conduct of its Affairs
The Board approves the overall strategies and initiatives of the Group, regularly reviews its financial performance and
ensures the implementation of appropriate systems to manage the principal risks of the Group’s business.

The Board established three sub-committees, namely Audit Committee, Nominating Committee and Remuneration Committee,
to assist in the execution of its responsibilities and facilitate effective management. The majority of members of the
sub-committees are non-executive Directors.

The Board currently holds about four scheduled meetings each year. In addition, it holds strategy meetings at such other
times as may be necessary to address any specific significant matters that may arise.

15
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The Directors’ attendances at Board and sub-committee meetings held in the financial year are as follow:

Audit Nominating Remuneration
Board Committee  Committee Committee

Meetings Meeting Meeting  Meeting

Number of meeting held 4 4 2 2

Chong Fook Choy 4 4*
Lim May Lan 4 4*
Foo See Liang 4 4
Jeffrey Staszak 1 of 2 Not applicable
Matthew Chan Chung Shin 3 1
Rick Kenneth Hodgman 4 4 2**  2**

* Attendance by invitation
** Meeting held with the HR Director

The Board receives relevant, complete and timely information prior to the Board meetings and on an on-going basis.
Management is invited to participate at the Board meetings to provide Board members with background and explanatory
information relating to matters brought before the Board.

The Company Secretary attends all Board and Audit Committee meetings and is responsible in ensuring that established
Board procedures and relevant company legislation, rules and regulations, which are applicable to the Company,
are complied with.

The Board has separate and independent access to the management team and the Company Secretary at all times.

Board Composition and Balance
The Board considers the current size, competence and composition of the Board appropriate, taking into consideration the
scope and nature of the Group’s operations. The Board comprises a majority of independent Directors.

The Board members, collectively have a diversified portfolio of expertise covering business, industry knowledge, strategic
planning, risks management and assurance, accounting and financial knowledge. The key information pertaining to each
Director is set out on pages 10 to 11 of the Annual Report.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the Board is subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the Annual General Meeting. New Board members, if any, will undergo an orientation programme, which will
include briefings by the Chairman of the Nominating Committee, Chief Executive Officer and management on the business
activities of the Group, its strategic directions as well as corporate governance practices so as to facilitate their understanding
of the Group.

Corporate Governance
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Chong Fook Choy, the Chief Executive Officer, is also the Chairman of the Board. The Co-Chairman is Dr. Foo See Liang,
an independent non-executive Director, who provides oversight on Board matters.

In addition, the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are not separated because majority of the Board comprises
independent non-executive Directors and they have access to the Company’s senior management, auditors and Company
Secretary. Furthermore, the Chairman cum Chief Executive Officer is not a member of any of the three sub-committees in
order to ensure an appropriate balance of power, accountability and greater capacity of the Board and each of the three
sub-committees for independent decision-making.

The Chief Executive Officer provides overall vision and strategic guidance for the Group and is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group’s affairs.

Nominating Committee
The Nominating Committee in the financial year comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Rick
Kenneth Hodgman (Chairman) and Mr. Jeffrey Staszak. With their resignations from the Board, Mr. Phoon Wai Meng is
appointed as the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin and Ms. Lim May Lan are
appointed as members of the Committee.

The Committee plays a vital role in assessing the effectiveness of the Board, its committees and their members. Its functions
include the nominations for the appointment, re-appointment, election or re-election of Directors and members of the
Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee. It also reviews and approves nominations for senior management positions
in the Group, including that of the Chief Executive Officer and other senior executives.

The Nominating Committee is tasked to assist the Board in ensuring that Directors appointed to the Board possess the
relevant background, experience and knowledge in technology, business, finance and management skills critical to the
Group’s businesses and that each Director, through his unique contributions, brings to the Board an independent objective
perspective to enable balanced and well-considered decisions to be made.

REMUNERATION MATTERS

Remuneration Committee
The Remuneration Committee in the financial year comprises two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Rick
Kenneth Hodgman (Chairman) and Mr. Jeffrey Staszak. With their resignations from the Board, Mr. Phoon Wai Meng is
appointed as the Chairman of the Nominating Committee and Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin and Ms. Lim May Lan are
appointed as members of the Committee.

It is responsible for reviewing and recommending to the Board the compensation packages of the Directors, Chief Executive
Officer, and other senior management executives of the Group. The Committee is also empowered to review policies governing
compensation and promotion of executive officers of the Company and its subsidiaries to ensure that these are consistent
with the Group’s strategy and performance.

The Committee also oversees the administration of the Ellipsiz Share Option Plan (“ESOP”) and the Ellipsiz Restricted
Stock Plan (“ERSP”).



18

Remuneration Information
The executive Directors have employment contracts with the Company that can be terminated by either party serving the
relevant notice. The Executive Directors are assessed based on the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The non-executive Directors have no service contract with the Company.

In line with past practices, the Directors of the Company are paid Directors’ fees, subject to approval at the Annual General
Meeting. No individual Director fixes his own remuneration.

The remuneration information of the Directors is as set out below:

Salary and
Directors’ allowance

Remuneration fees (inclusive of CPF) Bonus Total
Director Band (%) (%) (%) (%)

Executive Directors
Mr. Chong Fook Choy Above $750,000 3 38 59 100
Ms. Lim May Lan $250,000 to $499,999 9 56 35 100

Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Foo See Liang Below $250,000 75 - 25 100
Mr. Jeffrey Staszak Below $250,000 100 - - 100
Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin Below $250,000 75 - 25 100
Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman Below $250,000 75 - 25 100

The Best Practices Guide requires the disclosure of the names and remuneration of at least the top five executives (who are
not Directors) earning remuneration that falls within bands of $250,000. The Company believes that disclosure of the
details and remuneration of individual executives is disadvantageous to its business interests, given that it is operating in a
highly competitive industry. The Group has instead presented the number of top five key executives (who are not Directors
of the Company) that receive remuneration in bands of $250,000.

Remuneration Bands Number of staff

Below $250,000 4
$250,000 to $499,999 1
$500,000 to $749,999 -
Above $750,000 -

There are no employees in the Group who are immediate family members of a Director or the Chief Executive Director.

Ellipsiz Share Option Plan & Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan
The salient details of the ESOP and ERSP and the details of the options and awards granted are provided in the Directors’
Report and Note 25 to the financial statements in the audited accounts.

Since the commencement of ESOP and ERSP, no options or awards have been granted to the controlling shareholders of the
Company or their associates. Details of the options and awards granted to Directors and details of participants who have
been granted 5% or more of the total options or awards available under the Plans are provided in the Directors’ Report.

Corporate Governance
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board keeps the shareholders updated on the business of the Group through releases of the Group’s half and full year
financial results, publication of the Company’s annual report and timely releases of the relevant information through MASNET.

Management keeps the Board informed of the Group’s performance through presentation at the quarterly Board meetings,
regular updates and informal discussions.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three non-executive Directors namely Dr. Foo See Liang (Chairman), Mr. Rick Kenneth
Hodgman and Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin. Mr. Phoon Wai Meng joined the Committee as a member after Mr. Rick
Kenneth Hodgman’s resignation from the Board in August 2004.

In assisting the Board to fulfill its responsibilities for the Group’s financial statements and external financial reporting,
the Committee meets periodically with the management and external auditors to:

(a) review the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group before
submission to the Board for approval;

(b) review the interim and full year announcements of the Company and the Group before they are submitted to the
Board for approval;

(c) review and discuss with external auditors the overall scope of work of the audit and its effectiveness, the results of
the audit and the evaluation of the internal control system, auditors’ management letter and the responses from
management;

(d) review the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors of the Company;

(e) review the independence and objectivity of external auditors annually; and

(f) review interested person transactions between the Group and interested persons, if any.

The Committee is also tasked with advising the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of external auditors of
the Company at each Annual General Meeting. In accordance with Chapter 12 of the Singapore Exchange Listing Manual,
the Audit Committee also undertakes to review the non-audit services provided by the auditors and ensures that the
non-audit services shall not affect the independence of the external auditors.

The Audit Committee has full access to and co-operation from the Group’s management. It has also been given the resources
required to discharge its function properly and has full discretion to invite any Director or executive officer to attend its
meetings. The auditors have unrestricted access to the Audit Committee and meet with the members of the Audit Committee
without the presence of the management at least once a year.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board the nomination of KPMG for re-appointment as external auditors of
the Company at its forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Group presently does not have the independent internal audit function. However, the Board recognises the need of this
function and will from time to time review the appropriateness of its set up.

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control and is satisfied
that there is no significant weakness in the system of internal control of the Group that may result in material loss to
the Group.
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Risk Management
As the Company does not have a Risk Management Committee, the Audit Committee and the senior management assume
the responsibility of the risk management function.

The Audit Committee and senior management seek to identify areas of significant business risk, including revenue loss,
property loss and breach of information security, as well as appropriate measures to control and mitigate these risks.
In determining the appropriate measures, the cost of control and the impact of risks occurring will be balanced with the
benefits of reducing risk.

KEY MANAGEMENT TEAM

The profiles of the Group’s key management are set out on page 12 of the Annual Report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To maintain high level of transparency, the Board aims to ensure timely disclosure of all material business affecting the
Group through announcements made via MASNET. At the Annual General Meetings, shareholders are given opportunity to
express their views and make enquiries regarding the operations of the Group. The Board and management are present at
these meetings to address any question that shareholders may have concerning the Company. The external auditors are also
present to assist the Board in answering the relevant shareholders’ queries.

SECURITIES TRADING

In line with the Best Practices Guide issued by the SGX-ST, the Company has issued guidelines on share dealings to key
employees of the Group, setting out the implications of insider trading and recommendations of the Best Practices Guide.

The Directors have also adopted the Best Practices Guide with regards to dealings in the Company’s shares.

INTERESTED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted an internal policy with respect to interested person transactions and requires all such transactions
to be at arm’s length and reviewed by the Audit Committee.

In the financial year, one of the subsidiaries, Ellipsiz Singapore Pte Ltd, entered into a series of purchases of products
(“Transactions”) from Chiron Technology Pte Ltd (“Chiron Technology”). The aggregate value of the Transactions was
S$1,526,450. This represents 4% of the Company’s audited consolidated net tangible assets as at 30 June 2003.

Chiron Technology Pte Ltd is a wholly owned subsidiary of Chiron Holdings Pte Ltd (“Chiron Holdings”). Mr. Chong Fook
Choy, the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, is a shareholder of Chiron Holdings holding directly
715,900 ordinary shares which amounted to 38.38% of the total issued capital of Chiron Holdings. Chiron Holdings and
Chiron Technology are therefore considered “associates” of Mr. Chong.

As the Transactions were entered into between an associate of Mr. Chong and a subsidiary of the Company, Chiron Technology
is deemed to be an interested person in the Transactions within the meaning of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual and the
Transactions are an interested person transaction within the meaning of Chapter 9 of the Listing Manual.

Corporate Governance
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Rationale and Terms of the Transactions
Chiron Technology has appointed Ellipsiz Ltd and its subsidiaries as the sole distributor of its products in Singapore, Malaysia,
Thailand and China. Each transaction is concluded on normal commercial terms and usually supported by a back-to-back
order from customers of Ellipsiz Singapore Pte Ltd.

The Transactions were in the interests of and beneficial to the Company as these transactions provided a new stream of
revenue for the Company’s distribution business.

Audit Committee Statement
The Audit Committee of Ellipsiz Ltd, comprising Dr. Foo See Liang, Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman and Mr. Matthew Chan, has
reviewed the terms of the Transactions and having regard to the rationale for, and the benefit to, the Company, is of the view
that the Transactions were on normal commercial terms and were not prejudicial to the interests of the Company and its
minority shareholders.

Total Value of All Interested Person Transactions
The total value of all interested person transactions with Chiron Technology for the financial year ended 30 June 2004 was
S$2,003,720 and the total amount for the same financial year of all interested person transactions was S$2,003,720.
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Operating Review

A Year of Change
FY04 was a year of significant changes for Ellipsiz. During the year,
we brought the Group back to profitability, restructured our business
model and acquired new businesses to propel our future growth in
the midst of the anticipated cyclical nature of the semiconductor
industry.

Back to Profitability
Ellipsiz suffered losses in the past three financial years and the
recovery to profitability in FY04 was long awaited. In FY04, a profit
after tax of $8.2 million was achieved.

The full discussion of the performance will be carried out in the
Financial Review section.

Restructured Business Model & New
Business Acquisition
To better reflect the business activities and to redefine our core
competencies, Ellipsiz restructured its business segments from
Engineering Solutions Group and Advanced Packaging Solutions
Group to Wafer Fab Solutions division and Test & Advanced
Packaging Solutions division respectively. We also formed a new
business segment, the Fabless Solutions division.

Ellipsiz also acquired a number of new businesses to position
ourselves for the next stage of growth in FY05 and to enable the
Group to ride out the cyclical swings of the semiconductor industry.

Wafer Fab Solutions Division
The Wafer Fab Solutions division comprises the businesses of
Distribution, Facilities, Reclaim and Qualification & Reliability.
This Division achieved revenue of $65 million, contributing 93%
of the Group’s FY04 revenue. The revenue represented a 36%
revenue growth over FY03.

This Division had performed well in the Taiwan and China markets,
which contributed to a combined 30% of the $65 million revenue
in FY04 - in comparison to 17% of FY03 revenue.

In FY04, our core business consisted mainly of the distribution of
wafer fab equipment and semiconductor materials and consumables;
and facilities services, which include equipment hook-up, total
chemicals/ abatement/ gas management, wafer fab relocation
turnkey management and used equipment refurbishment.

Our customers include Chartered, UMCi, ST Microelectronics,
1st Silicon and SilTerra in South East Asia; TSMC, UMC and Winbond
in Taiwan; SMIC, ASMC, GSMC and CSMC in China; and others.

To complement our traditional Distribution and Facilities businesses
in FY04, we have expanded our businesses to include the Reclaim
and Qualification & Reliability businesses - both of which are heavily
anchored in intellectual property and/or service knowledge content
and would provide good level of recurrent incomes to the Group.

a) Reclaim
Wafer reclamation involves a multi-step cleaning, stripping, etching
and polishing process on used wafers to recycle them for testing
purposes. Reclaimed wafers offer significant savings to a wafer fab’s
cost of materials.

In the last quarter of FY04, Ellipsiz increased its stake in wafer
reclaim specialist, International Semiconductor Products, from an
indirect interest of 17.2% to a direct stake of 67.3%. This subsidiary
was subsequently renamed as Ellipsiz ISP Pte Ltd (“EISP”).
EISP owns and operates Singapore’s only wafer reclaim plant -
a well-equipped facility in Jurong, which has achieved ISO
9001:2000 certification. It currently serves some of Asia’s largest
wafer fabs in Singapore, Taiwan, Malaysia and China.

b) Qualification & Reliability
Reliability testing is a critical function in semiconductor design,
fabrication and packaging as manufacturers must prove the
reliability of their processes each time they introduce a new process
technology or make a significant change to a qualified process,
through a stringent set of tests.  This is to protect customers against
reliability problems with the chips that they make and package, as
faulty chips in an electronic product can result in considerable cost
and damage to the reputation of their manufacturers.

Ellipsiz’s expansion into the reliability business is three-tiered. Firstly,
Ellipsiz represents our partner, Chiron Technology, a global leader
in reliability and parametric testing, in the sales and technical support
of reliability testing equipment.

Secondly, to improve our intellectual property portfolio, Ellipsiz
acquired one-third shareholding in Chiron SemiLab Pte Ltd (“CSL”)
in the second quarter of FY04. CSL is into its second year of operation
in Singapore and it provides state-of-the-art reliability and failure
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analysis testing services to wafer fabrication and wafer packaging
manufacturers. It is the first in Asia and among pioneers worldwide to
provide an outsourcing alternative in this very crucial activity
throughout the manufacturing process chain, with a sophisticated
facility capable of running fully-customised test programs and test
structures designed by its in-house engineers.  The facility is currently
running at full capacity, and serving an international clientele
from Asia, Europe and the US on package-level and wafer-level
reliability projects, including a 300mm wafer-level total qualification
programme.

Thirdly, to further strengthen our foothold in China, we entered into
a joint venture with Shanghai ICRD, a state-linked research &
development house, to set up a reliability testing services lab in
Shanghai, modelled after CSL in Singapore.  This lab will, in addition,
be able to offer Radio Frequency (“RF”) and High Frequency (“HF”)
device testing services.

Through these three business engines and our comprehensive suite
of offerings, which include testing services, test structure design
and consultancy services; Ellipsiz is well positioned to compete as a
total reliability solutions provider.

The inclusion of these new business engines in the Wafer Fab
Solutions division does not have a significant impact on our FY04
financial results.

Test & Advanced Packaging Solutions Division
This Division contributed the remaining 7% of the Group’s revenue
in FY04 and consists of our wafer bump business unit. We had
experienced considerable difficulty with the wafer bump business
over a three-year period, which resulted in Group-level losses from
FY01 through to FY03.

Wafer bumping basically replaces the need for devices to be
wire-bonded into an encapsulated packaged lead frame. Micro
solder or gold balls are grown or ‘bumped’ onto device bond pads
as connectivity interfaces, and later flipped onto a substrate or
printed circuit board via an adhesive. This enables the resulting
form factor to be much more compact, and also provides improved
electrical performance as the traditional wire bonding and lead
frames are eliminated.

Our wafer bumping facility was essentially a mini wafer fab, as the
processes required were similar to that employed at regular wafer fabs.

Although not quite at the level of a full scale wafer fab, significant
capital expenditure was still required to outfit the bumping facility.

When wafer bumping foundry services was commercialised in the
year 2000, the semiconductor industry was still largely at 0.25
micron and to a lesser extent, 0.18 micron technology nodes.
The sweet spot for wafer bumping starts at 0.13 micron or smaller
devices, where compact form factors and electrical performances
are key requirements. It was not until 2003 when the market for
0.13 micron technology node devices started to grow to a significant
critical mass.

Despite having qualified stringent devices from critical customers
like Broadcom and NetLogic Microsystems with high quality and
yields, our wafer bumping services was essentially launched too
early ahead of time. We were unable to secure sufficient revenue to
cover high operating costs originating from capital equipment
depreciation and running costs to operate the bumping facility.
Consequently, we decided to change our operating mode.

Since early 2004, we have transformed our homegrown intellectual
property wafer bumping know-how from a strictly wafer bumping
services foundry, to a licensing approach. In this business model,
we offer total turnkey services, in the form of Integrate-Operate-
Transfer (“IOT”), to customers. The IOT approach involves the
selection and installation of required equipment, and the expertise
of our process engineers based on-site at the customer’s wafer fab
to ensure successful implementation and technology transfer. The
recent successful implementation of our very first IOT wafer bumping
turnkey project at SMIC’s eight inch wafer fab at Shanghai,
China, has positioned us well to embark on other similar turnkey
projects.  This project enabled us to reverse some $4.7 million assets
impairment provision in FY04.

The IOT model paves the way for us to generate revenue from the
sale of equipment, initial licence and technology transfer fees, and
subsequent royalties from bumped wafers, without the prohibitive
costs associated with operating a wafer bumping facility.

With Amkor Technology acquiring Unitive to offer its in-house
customers wafer bumping services, Flip Chip International remains
the only established merchant competitor to Ellipsiz in offering wafer
bumping licensing services to the semiconductor industry.
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Fabless Solutions Division
The Supply Chain Management, Design Test and Probe Cards
business units make up this Division. The first two businesses, based
in China, are currently still in incubation, pending the integration
of various partners necessary for sustainable implementation.

The Supply Chain Management business targets local Chinese
fabless start-ups and aggregates their wafer fab, assembly and
testing requirements – without which they are less likely to have
access to, due to typically low volume requirements.

The Design Test business targets local Chinese fabless companies
with access to integrated circuit design verification tools and
testing services.

Ellipsiz engaged the Probe Card business through a 40% equity
joint venture with SV Probe Holding Ltd, a leading high-performance
probe cards supplier in the US market in the first quarter of FY04.
In August 2004, subsequent to the close of the financial year,
Ellipsiz increased its stake to 50% in the enlarged joint venture,
which will now include US-based SV Probe Inc.

Risks and Uncertainties

a) Cyclical Industry
The semiconductor industry is highly cyclical due to the abrupt
fluctuations in supply and demand of semiconductors. The
semiconductor industry has experienced periodic downturns that
have resulted in semiconductor manufacturers canceling or delaying
their purchases of semiconductor materials or equipment. The timing,
length and severity of such downturns are difficult to predict. In the
event of any downturn in the semiconductor industry, the Group’s
operating results would be materially affected.

b) Dependence On A Few Key Principals
In FY04, the Group’s six largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 36% of the Group’s revenue.

All semiconductor materials, equipments and products sold and
serviced by the Group are pursuant to agreements with the
principals. These agreements could be terminated either by the
Group or the principals based on notification periods that range
from 30 days to two years. The Group generally does not sell
competing products in the same market, and therefore the number
of principals that the Group can represent at any one time is limited.

The principals may terminate their relationships with the Group
and should the Group lose any key principal, the Group may not be
able to find a suitable replacement on a timely basis, or at all.

The loss of a key principal may cause the Group to lose customers
and incur expenses associated with the termination of the
agreement with that principal. The Group may lose principals for
various reasons. These include mergers and acquisitions involving
the principals and other semiconductor materials and equipment
manufacturers that the Group does not represent; the expansion
of a principal’s products offerings to compete with the products of
another principal (as the Group generally does not offer competing
product lines in the same market, the Group may be required to
terminate the agreement with one of the competing principals); a
principal’s dissatisfaction with the Group’s level or quality of service;
and the failure of a principal’s business.

If, for any reason, any of the key principals were to materially reduce
their business or terminate their relationship with the Group, the
loss of the key principals would have a material and adverse effect
on the Group’s business.

c)  Dependence On A Few Key Customers
In FY04, five of our largest customers accounted for approximately
36% of the Group’s revenue. However, further consolidation in the
semiconductor industry may occur and this may result in increased
customer concentration and reliance on fewer key customers in
the future. Unless the Group diversifies and expands its customer
base, the Group business may be hampered due to its reliance on
too few customers. A significant decrease in sales to a major
customer or the deferral or cancellation of any significant order
would have an adverse effect on the Group’s operating results.

d)  Foreign Exchange Risk
As the Group is involved in international businesses, it is exposed
to foreign exchange risk for its sales, purchases, trade receivables,
trade payables and cash and cash equivalents denominated in
foreign currencies. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily
US dollars and Japanese yen. Currently, the Group does not hedge
its foreign currency exposure, as there is natural hedging between
its sales and purchases, its trade receivables and trade payables.
However, the management monitors the exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.



25

Financial Review

The following discussion is based on and should be read in conjunction with, the audited consolidated financial statements

of Ellipsiz Ltd and its subsidiaries, including the notes thereto. The discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve
a number of risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements.

Our consolidated financial statements are reported in Singapore Dollars and have been prepared in accordance with the provisions
of Companies Act, Chapter 50, and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards (“FRS”).
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CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
Financial Year ended 30 June 2004 2003

$’000 $’000

Revenue 69,544 51,189
Cost of revenue (55,818) (47,037)

Gross profit 13,726 4,152
Other operating income 9,007 4,458
Distribution expenses (3,835) (3,755)
Administrative expenses (9,378) (9,508)
Other operating expenses (678) (13,281)

Profit/(loss) from operations 8,842 (17,934)
Finance costs (146) (252)
Share of results of associates 77 9
Share of results of a jointly-controlled entity (36) -

Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before taxation 8,737 (18,177)
Income taxes (479) 1,934

Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities after taxation 8,258 (16,243)
Minority interests (62) 469

Net profit/(loss) for the year 8,196 (15,774)

Earnings per share (cents)
-    Basic 3.88 (7.97)
-    Diluted 3.85 (7.97)

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
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Revenue
The Group’s revenue increased from $51.2 million in FY03 to $69.5 million in FY04, an improvement of 36%. The improved market situation,
the commencement of trading activities for our new pump refurbishment operations in Taiwan and the acquisition of new subsidiaries during
the year led to the higher revenue in FY04.

Wafer Fab Solutions division contributed 93% of the Group’s revenue in FY04 and remains the key business segment of the Group.  Excluding
the intercompany sales, Wafer Fab Solutions division’s revenue increased by 36%.

Test & Advanced Packaging Solutions division achieved revenue of $4.6 million in FY04, an improvement of 38%.

Gross profit
Gross profit of the Group increased from $4.2 million in FY03 to $13.7 million in FY04.  The 231% increase was attributed to the improved
revenue performance and higher gross margin. Gross margin increased from 8% in FY03 to 20% in FY04; a result of the sales mix, higher
margin from the improved industry environment, and the lower incurrence of direct labour costs and manufacturing overheads by the Test &
Advanced Packaging Solutions division.

Other operating income
Other operating income increased by $4.5 million or 102%. The increase was mainly due to the reversal of the Group’s impairment losses of
$4.7 million on property, plant and equipment. As at the balance sheet date, the Group assessed its impairment provision status in accordance
to the FRS. In light of the conclusion of a deal to dispose certain of the Group’s equipment that were previously provided as fully impaired,
the Group made the necessary reversal to reflect the net realisable value of the equipment.

Operating expenses
There was no significant movement in the distribution and administration expenses.

The variance for other operating expenses was mainly due to the $10.3 million impairment provision in FY03 resulting from the Group’s
assessment on the impairment status as at balance sheet date. There was no such expense incurred in FY04 and of the $10.3 million
impairment provision, $4.7 million was reversed in FY04 as explained in the “Other Operating Income” category.

Share of results of associates and a jointly- controlled entity
The share of profits from associates and a jointly-controlled entity increased from $9,000 in FY03 to $41,000 in FY04.

Income taxes
The Group had a tax expense of $0.5 million in FY04, as compared to the tax credit of $1.9 million in FY03.

The tax expense comprises the Group’s current year tax expense of $0.7 million, offset by adjustment of $0.1 million in respect of prior years’
tax expense and the deferred tax credit of $0.1 million.

Profit/(loss) after tax but before minority interests
The Group recorded a profit after tax but before minority interests of $8.3 million in FY04. The positive variance of $24.5 million was
due to the improved revenue and margin performance and the lower operating expenses, partially offset by the higher tax expense.
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 30 June 2004 2003

$’000 $’000

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 15,197 2,347
Intangible assets (1,281) 244
Associates 4,201 46
Jointly-controlled entity 372 -
Other assets 79 79
Lease payments receivable - 1,871
Trade receivables 199 -
Deferred tax assets 310 533

19,077 5,120

NET CURRENT ASSETS
Current assets 82,648 49,762
Current liabilities (21,540) (15,223)

61,108 34,539

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (6,221) (220)
MINORITY INTERESTS (2,010) (1,220)

NET ASSETS 71,954 38,219

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 59,431 49,500
Reserves 12,523 (11,281)

Shareholders’ Equity 71,954 38,219
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Non-current assets
The Group’s non-current assets increased from $5.1 million as at 30 June 2003 to $19.1 million as at 30 June 2004.

The increase was mainly attributed to:-

(a) Increase in property, plant and equipment of $10.3 million resulting from the acquisition of subsidiaries;

(b) Purchase of property, plant and equipment of $1.1 million; and

(c) Increase in investment in associates and a jointly-controlled entity totalling $4.5 million.
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Net current assets
Net current assets increased by $26.6 million from $34.5 million as at 30 June 2003 to $61.1 million as at 30 June 2004.

Acquisition of subsidiaries accounted for approximately $1.2 million increase in net current assets.

Resulting from higher trading activities in FY04, especially towards the end of the financial year, the Group’s receivables and payables
increased by 95% and 33% respectively.

The 56% increase in cash and cash equivalents was mainly from the proceeds received through a share placement exercise in March 2004.

Non-current liabilities
The increase of non-current liabilities from $0.2 million as at 30 June 2003 to $6.2 million as at 30 June 2004 was mainly due to the increase
in interest-bearing borrowings that were acquired from the new subsidiaries.

There was no other significant movement in the other balance sheet items.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Financial year ended 30 June 2004 2003

$’000 $’000

Net cash flows from operating activities (163) (9,487)
Net cash flows from investing activities (7,751) (530)
Net cash flows from financing activities 24,397 (1,381)

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 16,483 (11,398)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 32,343 44,015
Effect of exchange rate changes on balances in foreign currencies (4) (274)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 48,822 32,343
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The Group had a total net cash inflow of $16.5 million in FY04 as compared to the net cash outflow of $11.4 million in FY03.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
The cash flow from operating activities before working capital changes in FY04 was a net inflow of $5.3 million, an improvement over the
net cash outflow of $4.7 million in FY03. However the higher trade balances (net of trade receivables and trade payables) as at 30 June 2004
led to a net cash outflow position of $0.2 million from operating activities.

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
The Group had a net cash outflow of $7.8 million from investing activities.  This was mainly accounted by:-

(a) Investment and loan to associates of $2.9 million and $1.3 million respectively;

(b) Investment in a jointly-controlled entity of $0.4 million;

(c) Purchase of property, plant and equipment of $1.1 million; and

(d) Placement of fixed deposit of $2.8 million. The fixed deposit was secured for interest-bearing borrowings of a subsidiary of the Group.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
The net cash inflow from financing activities was mainly due to proceeds received from issue of new shares totalling $25.4 million and receipt
of grant income of $0.5 million.  The proceeds partially offset the repayment of hire purchase creditors and bank loans totalling $1.5 million
led to the net cash inflow of $24.4 million from financing activities.

29
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Industry Outlook

Compared to recent years, this year and next appears to be heading for robust economic growth on a global basis. In its spring economic
outlook in April, the International Monetary Fund (“IMF”) predicted a world expansion of 4.6% this year and, very probably, next year
as well.

It is further anticipated that the IMF would raise its forecast for global economic growth, this year to 4.9% and 4.4% for next year, in its
autumn outlook.

The anticipated global economic growth is likely to be backed up in tandem by some of the world’s major economies. US growth is expected
to come in at 4.4% this year and 3.8% next year, while Japan is set to grow 4.5% this year and 2.4% next, and China is forecasted to
expand by 9% this year and 7.5% next.

However, threats of terrorism and record-high oil prices pose risks for the future.

This pent-up economic recovery has certainly provided the much-needed knock-on effect for the semiconductor industry in turn. Following
where last year left off, the industry continued to consolidate its growth this year.

In its June forecast, the World Trade Semiconductor Statistics (“WSTS”) predicted that the global integrated circuit market would grow
28.4% this year – substantially higher than the 18.3% growth recorded last year. As in recent years, Asia Pacific is anticipated to power
ahead of other regions with a 36.5% growth this year.

WSTS – IC Market Forecast (Jun’04)
by region
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Encouragingly, the SEMI book-to-bill ratio for capital expenditure spending has been greater than 1.0 for ten consecutive months
from October last year to July this year. In comparison, it was less than 1.0 for thirteen consecutive months from September 2002 till
September 2003.

To meet the robust demand for semiconductor components, the industry continues to aggressively increase its manufacturing capacity.
This is very much consistent with Semiconductor Equipment and Materials International (“SEMI”)’s forecast that the global capital equipment
expenditure in the industry will grow a robust 63% this year. Once again, China continues to power ahead of all other regions in capital
expenditure spending with a 152.2% growth forecast for this year.

SEMI – Mid-Year CapEx Consensus Forecast (Jul’04)

SEMI – Global CapEx (Aug’04)
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Lending further confidence that recovery has truly kicked in, Semiconductor International Capacity Statistics (“SICAS”) reported that global
wafer fab capacity utilisation levels exceeded 90% from the fourth quarter of last year to the second quarter of this year. Such a high level
of capacity utilisation was last recorded in the fourth quarter of the year 2000. It is further anticipated that capacity utilisation will remain at
high levels for the rest of the year.

* SICAS – Semiconductor International Capacity Statistics

SICAS – Global IC Capacity and Utilisation (Aug ’04)

In summary, the outlook appears positive for the semiconductor industry this year. Economic and political considerations notwithstanding,
factors that may mitigate continued growth could possibly result from a build-up of semiconductor components inventory, due to lack of end
consumer demand. Also, the timing of various additional or new wafer fab capacity coming on stream may cause an excessive capacity
supply situation – resulting in under-optimised wafer fabs’ utilisation levels. If so, this may limit the wafer fabs capital expenditure
spending plans.

The semiconductor industry is expected to continue its growth next year – albeit in moderation, due to the robust growth anticipated for this
year. WSTS predicts that the integrated circuit market will continue to grow at a rate of 8.5% next year, with Asia Pacific continuing to lead
the other regions with a 11.1% projected growth rate.

Furthermore, SEMI forecasts that the capital equipment expenditure market will grow 24% in 2005, with China leading the way with a
growth forecast of 34.1%.

All things considered, we expect to continue growing throughout this year, and into the next. It certainly helps that our businesses are well
positioned in the growth regions of Asia Pacific, notably China.
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Directors' Report 
 
On behalf of all the directors of the Company, we are pleased to submit this annual report to the members of the 
Company together with the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the financial year 
ended 30 June 2004. 
 
 
Board of Directors 
 
The directors in office at the date of this report are as follows: 
 
Chong Fook Choy  
Lim May Lan  
Foo See Liang  
Matthew Chan Chung Shin  
Phoon Wai Meng          (Appointed with effect from 1 July 2004)  
 
In accordance with Article 91 of the Company's Articles of Association, Dr. Foo See Liang and Mr. Matthew Chan 
Chung Shin shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves 
for re-election. 
 
 
Directors' Interests  
 
According to the register kept by the Company for the purposes of Section 164 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50 
(the "Act"), particulars of interests of directors who held office at the end of the financial year (including those held by 
their spouses and infant children) in shares, debentures, warrants and share options in the Company and in related 
corporations (other than wholly-owned subsidiaries) are as follows: 
 

 Holdings registered in the name of 
directors, and their spouses or infant children 

The Company At 1/7/2003 At 30/6/2004 At 21/7/2004 
    
 Ordinary shares of $0.25 each fully paid 
    

Chong Fook Choy 28,000,320 28,250,320 28,250,320 
Lim May Lan 480,000 476,666 476,666 
Foo See Liang 80,000 200,000 200,000 
Matthew Chan Chung Shin - 180,000 180,000 
Rick Kenneth Hodgman#  80,000 100,000 100,000 

    
 Options to subscribe for ordinary shares of $0.25 each* 
    

Exercisable between 6 January 2004 
   and 5 January 2008 at $0.25 each 

   

   -   Lim May Lan  151,000 151,000 151,000 
    
Exercisable between 11 March 2005 
   and 10 March 2009 at $0.64 each 

   

   -   Chong Fook Choy - 240,000 240,000 
   -   Lim May Lan  - 159,000 159,000 
   -   Foo See Liang - 30,000 30,000 
   -   Matthew Chan Chung Shin - 20,000 20,000 
   -   Rick Kenneth Hodgman# - 30,000 30,000 
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Directors' Interests (cont'd) 
 
 Holdings registered in the name of 

directors, and their spouses or infant children 
The Company At 1/7/2003 At 30/6/2004 At 21/7/2004 
    
 Awards for ordinary shares of $0.25 each** 
  
To be vested between 6 January 2004 

and 6 January 2006 
   

-  Lim May Lan  122,000 81,334 81,334 
    

To be vested between 11 March 2005 
    and 11 March 2007 

   

-  Chong Fook Choy - 83,000 83,000 
-  Lim May Lan  - 52,000 52,000 

 
*  Options refer to the options to subscribe for shares of the Company granted to employees and directors of the 

Group pursuant to the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" approved by its shareholders on 28 November 2001. 
 
** Awards refer to the shares of the Company granted to employees and non-executive directors of the Group, free 

of charge, pursuant to the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" approved by its shareholders on 28 November 2001. 
 
#  Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman resigned with effect from 31 August 2004. 
 
Except as disclosed in this report, no director who held office at the end of the financial year had any interest in 
shares, debentures or share options of the Company, or of related corporations, either at the beginning or at the end 
of the financial year or at 21 July 2004. 
 
Except as disclosed under the "Share Plans" section of this report, neither at the end of nor at any time during the 
financial year, was the Company a party to any arrangement whose objects are, or one of whose objects is, to enable 
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the 
Company or any other body corporate. 
 
Except for the interested person transactions as disclosed in the Corporate Governance statement and Note 26 to the 
financial statements, since the end of the last financial year, no director, chief executive officer or substantial 
shareholder has received or become entitled to receive a benefit by reason of a contract made by the Company or a 
related corporation with the director, chief executive officer or substantial shareholder or with a firm in which he is a 
member or with a company in which he has a substantial financial interest. 
 
 
Share Plans 
 
On 28 November 2001, the Company approved the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock 
Plan". The "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" enables selected employees and non-executive directors of the Group to 
subscribe for shares in the Company. The "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" enables selected employees and non-
executive directors of the Group, other than controlling shareholders or their associates, to receive awards in the form 
of fully paid shares, their equivalent cash value or combination thereof, free of charge. 
 
The "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" are administered by the Remuneration 
Committee.  
 
Other salient details regarding the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" are set out below: 
 
(a) The total number of new shares over which options may be granted pursuant to the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan", 

when added to the number of new shares issued and issueable in respect of all options granted, and all awards 
granted under the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan", shall not exceed 15% of the issued share capital of the 
Company (or such other limit that may be imposed by the Companies Act or the SGX-ST Listing Manual) on the 
day preceding the relevant date of grant. This works on average to an issue rate of about 1.5% per year over the 
10-year period of each plan. 
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Share Plans (cont’d) 
  
(b)  The subscription price of the option shares is the price equal to the volume-weighted average price of the 

Company's shares on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited ("SGX-ST") over 7 consecutive 
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant options or such higher price as may be 
determined by the Remuneration Committee, provided always that the subscription price shall not be lower than 
the par value of the shares. Options may be exercised one year after the grant date and will expire on the 5th 
anniversary of the grant date, and in accordance with a vesting schedule and the conditions (if any) to be 
determined by the Remuneration Committee on such option's grant date, unless they are cancelled or have 
lapsed. 

 
(c)  The "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" envisages the awards of shares to participants upon achieving certain pre-

determined performance target(s) or fulfilling certain prescribed periods of service with the Group. Where the 
award is time-based, the awards granted will be vested after the grantee has fulfilled the prescribed period of 
employment with the Group as stated in the particular award letter. Where such award is performance-based, the 
awards will be vested after the grantee has achieved the performance targets within the performance periods set 
in that particular award and may be further subject to additional vesting periods as may be stipulated by the 
Remuneration Committee for each grantee. 

 
(d) Subject to the prevailing legislation and SGX-ST's guidelines, the Company has the flexibility to deliver shares to 

grantees upon the exercise of their awards by way of:- 
 

(i) an issue of new shares; and/or 
 

(ii) by procuring the transfer of existing shares 
 

The Company can also determine and make a release of an award, wholly or partly, in the form of cash rather 
than shares or by a combination of any of the mentioned methods. 

 
Details of options or awards granted during the financial year, under the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and "Ellipsiz 
Restricted Stock Plan" on the unissued ordinary shares of $0.25 each of the Company are set out in Note 25 to the 
financial statements. 
 
Except as disclosed herein, there were no unissued shares of the Company or its subsidiaries under options or 
awards granted by the Company or its subsidiaries at the end of the financial year. 
 
Details of options or awards granted to directors of the Company under the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and "Ellipsiz 
Restricted Stock Plan", collectively known as "the Plans" are as follows:  
 

 
 
 
Name of Director 

 
Options granted for 
financial year ended 

30 June 2004 

Aggregate options 
granted since 

commencement to 
30 June 2004 

Aggregate options 
exercised since 

commencement to 
30 June 2004 

 
Aggregate options 
outstanding as at 

30 June 2004 
 No. of  

options 
 

% 
No. of  

options 
 

% 
No. of  

options 
 

% 
No. of 

options 
 

% 
       
Chong Fook Choy 240,000 0.10 240,000 0.10 - - 240,000 0.10 
Lim May Lan 159,000 0.07 310,000 0.13 - - 310,000 0.13 
Foo See Liang 30,000 0.01 30,000 0.01 - - 30,000 0.01 
Matthew Chan Chung Shin 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 - - 20,000 0.01 
Rick Kenneth Hodgman# 30,000 0.01 30,000 0.01 - - 30,000 0.01 
      

 
 
 
Name of Director 

 
Awards granted for 
financial year ended 

30 June 2004 

Aggregate awards 
granted since 

commencement to 
30 June 2004 

Aggregate awards 
vested since 

commencement to 
30 June 2004 

 
Aggregate awards 
outstanding as at 

30 June 2004 
 No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
        
Chong Fook Choy 103,000 0.04 103,000 0.04 20,000 0.01 83,000 0.03 
Lim May Lan 72,000 0.03 194,000 0.08 60,666 0.03 133,334 0.06 
Foo See Liang 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 - - 
Matthew Chan Chung Shin 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 - - 
Rick Kenneth Hodgman 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 20,000 0.01 - - 
 
# Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman resigned on 31 August 2004 and the outstanding options lapsed. 
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Share Plans (cont’d) 
 
Details of participants (other than Directors) who received more than 5% of the total number of options and awards 
made available under the Plans are as follows: 

 
 

 
 
Participant 

 
 

Options granted for 
financial year ended 

30 June 2004 

 
Aggregate options 

granted since 
commencement to 

30 June 2004 

 
Aggregate options 

exercised since 
commencement to 

30 June 2004 

 
 

Aggregate options 
outstanding as at 

30 June 2004 
 No. of 

options 
 

% 
No. of 

options 
 

% 
No. of 

options 
 

% 
No. of 

options 
 

% 
         
Ong Puay Han 139,000 0.06 275,000 0.12 45,334 0.02 229,666 0.10 
Lee Siak Foon# 119,000 0.05 228,000 0.10 36,000 0.02 192,000 0.08 
Raymond Chin  

Chak Meng 
 

119,000 
 

0.05 
 

228,000 
 

0.10 
 

36,333 
 

0.02 
 

191,667 
 

0.08 
 

 
 

 
Participant 

 
Awards granted for 
financial year ended 

30 June 2004 

Aggregate awards 
granted since 

commencement to 
30 June 2004 

Aggregate awards 
vested since 

commencement to 
30 June 2004 

 
Aggregate awards 
outstanding as at 

30 June 2004 
 No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
No. of share 

awards 
 

% 
         
Ong Puay Han 52,000 0.02 162,000 0.07 36,667 0.02 125,333 0.05 
Lee Siak Foon# 45,000 0.02 135,000 0.06 30,000 0.01 105,000 0.04 
Raymond Chin  

Chak Meng 
      
45,000 

 
0.02 

   
45,000 

 
0.02 

 
- 

 
- 

    
 45,000 

 
0.02 

 
# Ms. Lee Siak Foon resigned subsequent to the end of the financial year and the outstanding options and awards 

lapsed. 
 
The percentage is computed based on the options or awards granted divided by the total number of ordinary shares 
issued by the Company as at 30 June 2004. 
 
Since the commencement of the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan", no option has been granted to the controlling 
shareholders of the Company or their associates. The aforesaid group of persons is also not eligible to participate in 
the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan". 
 
Other than as stated above, no participant under the Plans has been granted 5% or more of the total options or 
awards available under the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan". 
 
None of the options are granted at a subscription price which is at a discount of the shares' market price, as this is not 
allowed under the rules of the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan". 
 
The options granted by the Company do not entitle the holders of the options, by virtue of such holding, to any rights 
to participate in any share issue of any other company.  
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Audit Committee 
 
The members of the Audit Committee during the financial year are: 
 
Foo See Liang (Chairman) 
Matthew Chan Chung Shin 
Rick Kenneth Hodgman 
 
Mr. Rick Kenneth Hodgman resigned on 31 August 2004 and Mr. Phoon Wai Meng was appointed as a member of 
the Audit Committee. 
 
At the date of this report, the members of the Audit Committee are as follows: 
 
Foo See Liang (Chairman) 
Matthew Chan Chung Shin 
Phoon Wai Meng 
 
The Audit Committee performs the functions specified in Section 201B of the Companies Act, the SGX-ST Listing 
Manual and the Code of Corporate Governance. 
 
The Audit Committee has held 4 meetings since the last directors' report. 
 
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include review of: 
 
(a) the financial statements of the Company and the consolidated financial statements of the Group before 

submission to the Board for approval; 
 
(b) the half and full year announcements of the Company and the Group before they are submitted to the Board 

for approval; 
 
(c) and discussion with the external auditors on the overall scope of work of the audit and its effectiveness, the 

results of the audit and the evaluation of the internal control system, auditors' management letter and the 
responses from management;  

 
(d) the nature and extent of non-audit services provided by the external auditors to the Company; 
 
(e) the independence and objectivity of external auditors annually; and 
 
(f) interested person transactions between the Group and interested persons, if any. 
 
In accordance with Chapter 9 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Audit Committee has reviewed the requirements for 
approval and disclosure of interested person transactions, and reviewed the internal procedures set up by the 
Company to identify and report and where necessary, seek approval for interested person transactions. 
 
In accordance with Chapter 12 of the SGX-ST Listing Manual, the Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all 
non-audit services provided by the auditors and these services would not, in the Audit Committee's opinion, affect the 
independence of the auditors. 
 
The Audit Committee has full access to management and is given the resources required for it to discharge its 
functions. It has full authority and discretion to invite any director or executive officer to attend its meetings. 
 
The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the auditors, KPMG, be nominated for re-
appointment as auditors at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
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Auditors 
 
The auditors, KPMG, have indicated their willingness to accept re-appointment. 
 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
................................................. 
CHONG FOOK CHOY 
Director 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
................................................. 
LIM MAY LAN 
Director 

SINGAPORE 
 
6 September 2004 
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Statement by Directors 
 
In our opinion: 
 
(a) the financial statements set out on pages 42 to 95 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state 

of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2004 and the results and changes in equity of the 
Group and of the Company and the cash flows of the Group for the financial year ended on that date; and 

 
(b) at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its 

debts as and when they fall due. 
 
The Board of Directors has, on the date of this statement, authorised these financial statements for issue. 
 
 
 
On behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 

 
 
.............................................................. 
CHONG FOOK CHOY 
Director  
 
 

 
 
.............................................................. 
LIM MAY LAN 
Director 
 

 

SINGAPORE 
 
6 September 2004 
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Report of the Auditors to the Members of 
Ellipsiz Ltd 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ellipsiz Ltd for the financial year ended 30 June 2004 as 
set out on pages 42 to 95. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's directors. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing. Those Standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made 
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion: 
 
(a) the consolidated financial statements of the Group and the balance sheet, profit and loss statement and 

statement of changes in equity of the Company are properly drawn up in accordance with the provisions of the 
Companies Act, Chapter 50 (the "Act") and Singapore Financial Reporting Standards to give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 30 June 2004 and the results, changes in 
equity and cash flows of the Group and the results and changes in equity of the Company for the year ended 
on that date; and 

 
(b) the accounting and other records (excluding registers) required by the Act to be kept by the Company and by 

those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore of which we are the auditors have been properly kept in 
accordance with the provisions of the Act. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KPMG 
Certified Public Accountants 

SINGAPORE 
 
6 September 2004 
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   -------- The Group --------  ------ The Company ------ 
   2004  2003  2004  2003 
  Note $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
          
Non-Current Assets         

 Property, plant and  
equipment 

 
3 

 
15,197 

  
2,347 

  
183 

  
1,160 

 Intangible assets 4 (1,281)  244  1  244 
 Subsidiaries   5 -  -  12,693  5,402 
 Associates 6 4,201  46  3,550  50 
 Jointly-controlled entity 7 372  -  -  - 
 Other assets 8 79  79  75  75 
 Lease payments receivable 9 -  1,871  -  - 
 Trade receivables 13 199  -  -  - 
 Deferred tax assets 18 310  533  -  - 
   19,077  5,120  16,502  6,931 
          
Current Assets          
 Inventories 10 3,733  3,298  -  - 
 Trade and other receivables 12 26,140  12,381  1,336  1,944 
 Amounts due from related 

parties  
 

14 
 

597 
  

15 
  

14,704 
  

9,711 
 Lease payments receivable 9 -  696  -  - 
 Cash and cash equivalents 15 52,178  33,372  36,479  17,330 
   82,648  49,762  52,519  28,985 
 Less:         
Current Liabilities          

 Trade and other payables 16 18,625  13,136  4,568  4,452 
 Amounts due to related 

parties  
 

14 
 

105 
  

5 
  

43 
  

9 
 Interest-bearing borrowings 17 1,833  1,068  17  218 
 Current tax payable  977  1,014  -  - 
   21,540  15,223  4,628  4,679 

Net Current Assets  61,108  34,539  47,891  24,306 
  80,185  39,659  64,393  31,237 

Less:          
Non-Current Liabilities         

 Interest-bearing borrowings 17 5,602  27  -  27 
 Deferred tax liabilities 18 619  193  37  186 
   6,221  220  37  213 
   73,964  39,439  64,356  31,024 
          
Minority Interests  (2,010)  (1,220)  -  -  

Net Assets  71,954  38,219  64,356  31,024 
          
Share Capital 19 59,431  49,500  59,431  49,500 
          
Reserves 20 12,523  (11,281)  4,925  (18,476)  

Shareholders' Equity  71,954  38,219  64,356  31,024 
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   --------The Group --------     --------The Company --------  
  2004  2003  2004  2003 
 Note $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
         

Revenue 21 69,544  51,189  4,621  5,204 
Cost of revenue  (55,818)  (47,037)  (184)  - 
Gross profit  13,726  4,152  4,437  5,204 

Other operating income 22(a) 9,007  4,458  9,175  7,012 
Distribution expenses  (3,835)  (3,755)  -  - 
Administrative expenses  (9,378)  (9,508)  (5,321)  (5,510) 
Other operating expenses  (678)  (13,281)  (203)  (34,915) 
Profit/(loss) from 

operations 
  

8,842 
  

(17,934) 
  

8,088 
  

(28,209) 
Finance costs 22(e) (146)  (252)  (9)  (35) 
Share of results of  

associates 
  

77 
  

9 
  

- 
  

- 
Share of results of a 

jointly-controlled  
entity 

 
 

 
 

(36) 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 
Profit/(loss) from 

ordinary activities 
before taxation 

 
 

22 

 
 

8,737 

  
 

(18,177) 

  
 

8,079 

  
 

(28,244) 
Income taxes 23 (479)  1,934  (298)  254 
Profit/(loss) from 

ordinary activities after 
taxation  

  
 

8,258 

  
 

(16,243) 

  
 

7,781 

  
 

(27,990) 
Minority interests  (62)  469  -  - 

Net profit/(loss) for the 
year  

 
8,196  

 
(15,774)  

 
7,781  

 
(27,990) 

         
Earnings per share 

(cents) 
 

24 
       

-   Basic  3.88  (7.97)     
-   Diluted   3.85  (7.97)     
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Share 
capital 
$'000 

  
Share 

premium 
$'000 

  
Capital 
reserve 
$'000 

 Exchange 
translation 

reserve 
$'000 

  
Accumulated 

losses 
$'000 

  
 

Total 
$'000 

             
The Group             
             
At 1 July 2002  

 
49,500  37,944  (11,720)  (27)  (21,494)  54,203 

Exchange  
    difference on 

translation of 
financial 
statements of 
foreign entities 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

(210)  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 

(210) 

Net loss for the year 
 
 

-  -  -  -  (15,774)  (15,774) 

At 30 June 2003   49,500  37,944  (11,720)  (237)  (37,268)  38,219 
             
Issue of ordinary 

shares  
 

9,931 
  

16,289 
  

- 
  

- 
  

- 
  

26,220 
             
Exchange 
    difference on 

translation of 
financial 
statements of 
foreign entities  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

(12)  

 
 
 
 

-  

 
 
 
 

(12) 
Expenses relating to 

issue of ordinary 
shares deducted 
against share 
premium  -  (669)  -  -  - 

 

(669) 
Net loss recognised 

directly in equity  -  (669)  -  (12)  -  (681) 
 
Net profit for the year 

 
 -  -  -  -  8,196  

 
8,196 

At 30 June 2004  59,431  53,564  (11,720)  (249)  (29,072)  71,954 
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  Share 

capital 
$'000 

 Share 
premium 

$'000 

 Accumulated 
losses 
$'000 

  
Total 
$'000 

         
The Company         
         
At 1 July 2002 
 

 49,500  37,944  (28,430)  59,014 

Net loss for the year 
 

 -  -  (27,990)  (27,990) 

At 30 June 2003 
 

 49,500  37,944  (56,420)  31,024 

Issue of ordinary shares  9,931  16,289  -  26,220 
         
Expenses relating to issue 

of ordinary shares 
deducted against share 
premium 

  
 

 
- 

  
 
 

(669) 

  
 
 

- 

  
 
 

(669) 
         
Net profit for the year 
 

 -  -  7,781  7,781 

At 30 June 2004  59,431  53,564  (48,639)  64,356 
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2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

     
Operating Activities     

Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before taxation  8,737  (18,177) 
Adjustments for:     
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment   1,734  4,051 
Interest income  (120)  (242) 
Interest expense  146  252 
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment  5  (407) 
Reversal of allowance for doubtful loan to an associate#  (475)  - 
Gain on disposal of unquoted equity investments  -  (133) 
Loss on liquidation of an associate  4  - 
Loss on disposal of intangible assets  -  644 
Amortisation of:     
-  intangible assets  243  1,133 
-  negative goodwill  (336)  - 
-  positive goodwill  61  - 
(Reversal)/provision of impairment losses on: 
-  property, plant and equipment 

  
(4,650) 

  
10,052 

-  intangible assets  -  283 
Shares awarded to employees*  195  - 
Grant income  (191)  (838) 
Amortisation of deferred income  -  (1,352) 
Share of results of associates and a jointly-controlled entity  (41)  (9) 
Operating profit/(loss) before working capital changes  5,312  (4,743) 
Changes in working capital:     
Inventories  332  953 
Amount due from related parties (Trade)  (299)  - 
Amount due to related parties (Trade)  98  - 
Trade and other receivables  (12,385)  2,340 
Lease payments receivable  2,567  (2,567) 
Trade and other payables  4,393  (3,830) 
Pledged fixed deposits  473  (1,029) 
Cash generated from operations  491  (8,876) 
Interest received  120  241 
Interest paid  (146)  (252) 
Income tax paid  (628)  (600) 
Cash flows from operating activities  (163)  (9,487) 
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Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

     
Investing Activities     
Proceeds from disposal of other investments  -  133 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (1,093)  (683) 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment  1,404  551 
Purchase of intangible assets  -  (741) 
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets  -  210 
Investments in associates  (2,901)  - 
Loans to associates  (1,300)  - 
Proceeds from liquidation of an associate  42  - 
Net cash outflow on acquisitions of subsidiaries &  (389)  - 
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary  (23)  - 
Amount due from related parties (Non-trade)  (283)  - 
Investment in a jointly-controlled entity  (408)  - 
Pledged fixed deposits  (2,800)  - 
Cash flows from investing activities  (7,751)  (530) 
     
Financing Activities     
Repayment of term loan  -  (53) 
Repayment of bank loans  (407)  (1,052) 
Repayment of hire purchase and finance lease creditors  (1,135)  (1,256) 
Grant received  581  962 
Amount due to related parties (Non-trade)  2  - 
Issue of ordinary shares  25,356  - 
Others  -  18 
Cash flows from financing activities  24,397  (1,381) 
     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents   16,483  (11,398) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  32,343  44,015 
Effect of exchange rate changes on balances  
  in foreign currencies 

  
(4) 

  
(274) 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 15 48,822  32,343 
 
Significant non-cash transactions 
 
# Loan amounting to $475,000 (2003: $Nil) receivable from an associate was set off against part of the 

consideration for the acquisition of interest in a subsidiary from the associate. 
 

* Shares amounting to $195,000 (2003: $Nil) issued under "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" free-of-charge to 
staff was charged as staff cost and credited to the equity directly. 
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&  The effect of acquisitions of subsidiaries is set out below: 
  

 
2004 
$'000 

   
Property, plant and equipment  10,251 
Inventories  767 
Trade and other receivables  1,951 
Cash and cash equivalents  251 
Trade and other payables  (1,096) 
Interest-bearing borrowings  (7,882) 
Deferred tax liabilities  (761) 
Net identifiable assets and liabilities  3,481 
Minority interests  (1,080) 
Loan receivable from an associate set off against consideration for 

acquisition of a subsidiary 
  

(475) 
  1,926 
Goodwill on acquisition  (1,286) 
Consideration satisfied in cash  640 
Cash acquired  (251) 
Net cash outflow  389 
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These notes form an integral part of the financial statements.   
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 6 September 2004. 
 
1. Domicile and Activities 
 
 Ellipsiz Ltd (the "Company") is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and has its registered office at 

29 Woodlands Industrial Park E1, Lobby 1, #04-01/06 NorthTech Building, Singapore 757716.   
 
 The principal activities of the Company are those relating to investment holding and the provision of 

management services. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial 
statements. 
 

 The consolidated financial statements relate to the Company and its subsidiaries (referred to as the 
"Group") and the Group's interests in associates and jointly-controlled entities. 
 

 
2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

 
(a) Basis of Preparation 

 
 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Singapore Financial 
Reporting Standards ("FRS") including related interpretations promulgated by the Council on 
Corporate Disclosure and Governance. 

 
 The financial statements were previously prepared in accordance with Singapore Statements of 
Accounting Standard ("SAS"). The transition from SAS to FRS did not give rise to any adjustments 
to the opening balances of accumulated losses of the prior and current periods or changes in 
comparatives. 

 
 The financial statements, which are expressed in Singapore dollars thousands, unless stated 
otherwise, are prepared on the historical cost basis. 

 
(b) Measurement Currency 

 
Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the 
currency that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances 
relevant to that entity (the "measurement currency"). The consolidated financial statements and 
the financial statements of the Company are presented in Singapore dollars, which is the 
measurement currency of the Company. 

 
(c) Consolidation  

 
Subsidiaries are companies controlled by the Company. Control exists when the Company has the 
power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies of a company so as to 
obtain benefits from its activities. 
 
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or presently 
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Company controls another company. 

 
Investments in subsidiaries are stated in the Company's balance sheet at cost less impairment 
losses. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date that control commences until the date their control ceases. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
 

(c) Consolidation (cont'd) 
 

Associates are companies in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the 
financial and operating policies. Jointly-controlled entities are those enterprises over whose 
activities the Group has joint control, established by contractual agreement. 
 
The existence and effect of potential voting rights that are presently exercisable or presently 
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant influence over  
another company. 
 
Investments in associates and jointly-controlled entities are stated in the Company's balance sheet 
at cost less impairment losses. In the Group's financial statements, they are accounted for by using 
the equity method of accounting. The Group's investments in these entities includes goodwill (net 
of accumulated amortisation) on acquisition.  

 
When the Group's share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the associate or jointly-
controlled entity, the carrying amount is fully written down and recognition of further losses is 
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations in respect of the 
associate or jointly-controlled entity. 

 
(d) Foreign Currencies 
 

(i) Foreign Currencies Translation 
 

 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Singapore dollars at 
rates of exchange closely approximate to those ruling at the balance sheet date. 
Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are translated at rates ruling on 
transaction dates. Translation differences are included in the profit and loss account. 

 
(ii) Foreign Entities 

 
The assets and liabilities of foreign entities are translated into Singapore dollars at the rates 
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. The results of foreign entities are translated at 
the average exchange rates for the year. Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on 
acquisition of foreign entities are stated at exchange rates ruling on transaction dates. The 
exchange differences are dealt with as a movement in Exchange Translation Reserve.  

 
(e) Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment 
losses. 

 
 Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated on the straight-line basis so as to write 

off the costs of the property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives as follows: 
  
  

Leasehold building 30 years 
Leasehold improvements shorter of 30 years and remaining lease period 
Furniture and fittings 5 to 10 years 
Office equipment 5 to 10 years 
Computers 3 to 5 years 
Motor vehicles 5 years 
Plant and machinery 3 to 10 years 
Mechanical and electrical facilities 10 years 
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2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
 

(e) Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd) 
 
 Property, plant and equipment acquired through finance leases are capitalised at the lower of its 

fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, less 
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Lease payments are apportioned between the 
finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against the profit and 
loss account.  

 
(f) Intangible Assets 
 

(i)  Goodwill on Consolidation 
 

Goodwill arising on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair 
value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired. Goodwill is stated at cost 
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Goodwill arising on acquisitions of 
associates and jointly-controlled entities is included in investments in associates and 
investments in jointly-controlled entities respectively. 

 
Goodwill is amortised and recognised in the profit and loss account using the straight-line 
method over its estimated useful life of not more than 20 years. 

 
(ii)   Negative Goodwill 
 

Negative goodwill arising on acquisitions represents the excess of the fair value of the 
identifiable net assets acquired over the cost of acquisition. Negative goodwill is presented 
as a deduction from assets in the same balance sheet classification as goodwill. 
 
To the extent that negative goodwill relates to an expectation of future losses and expenses 
that are identified in the plan of acquisition and can be measured reliably, but which have 
not yet been recognised, it is recognised in the profit and loss account when the future 
losses and expenses are recognised. Any remaining negative goodwill, but not exceeding 
the fair values of the non-monetary assets acquired, is recognised in the profit and loss 
account over the weighted average useful life of those assets that are depreciable or 
amortisable. Negative goodwill in excess of the fair values of the non-monetary assets is 
recognised immediately in the profit and loss account. 
 
In respect of associates and jointly-controlled entities, the carrying amount of negative 
goodwill is included in investments in the associates and investments in jointly-controlled 
entities respectively. 

 
(iii) Research and Development 

 
Development expenditure attributable to a project whose technical feasibility and 
commercial viability are reasonably assured is capitalised. Capitalised development 
expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over a 5-year period from the date of 
commencement of commercial production. 

 
Other research and development expenditure is recognised in the profit and loss account 
as an expense when incurred. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
   

(f) Intangible Assets (cont'd) 
 

(iv) Computer Software 
 

Computer software which does not form an integral part of related hardware is stated at 
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. 
 
Amortisation of computer software is calculated on the straight-line basis so as to write off 
the costs of the computer software over its estimated useful life of 5 years.  
 

(g) Affiliates 
 
An affiliate is defined as one, other than a related corporation, which has common direct or indirect 
shareholders or common directors with the Company. 
 
Amounts due from affiliates are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful receivables. 
 

(h) Other Assets 
 
Securities and club memberships held for the long-term are stated at amortised cost less an 
allowance for diminution in value which, in the opinion of the directors, is other than temporary.  
 

(i) Finance Lease 
 
A lease is accounted for as finance lease when substantially all the risks and rewards incident to 
legal ownership are transferred by the lessor to the lessee. 
 
Where the Group is the lessor, the finance lease is recognised in the balance sheet at the gross 
amounts receivable less unearned interest and allowance for doubtful receivables. 
 

(j) Inventories 
 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  

 
 The cost of inventories is determined principally on the weighted average cost formula and 
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. In the case of work-in-progress, cost includes 
an appropriate proportion of attributable overheads. 

 
 When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an expense 

in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any allowance for write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an 
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any allowance 
for write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a 
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
reversal occurs. 

 
(k) Trade and Other Receivables 

 
Trade and other receivables are stated at cost less allowance for doubtful receivables. 
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2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
 

(l) Government Grants 
 

 Grants received in respect of the acquisition of property, plant and equipment are presented in the 
balance sheet as deferred income and are accreted to development expenditure or profit and loss 
account on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the relevant assets. Income 
related grants are charged against the relevant research and development expenses in the period 
to which they relate. 
 

(m) Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and bank deposits. For the purposes of the 
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents are presented net of bank overdrafts which are 
repayable on demand and which form an integral part of the Group's cash management and 
exclude the short term deposits which are pledged to the bank as security and cannot be 
withdrawn on demand. 
 

(n) Impairment 
 
 The carrying amounts of the Group's assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are 

reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If 
any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. For intangible assets that 
are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated at each balance sheet date. 

 
 Impairment losses are recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating 

unit exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss 
account. 

 
 The recoverable amount is the greater of the asset's net selling price and value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using 
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely 
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

 
 An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the 

recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of impairment 
are recognised in the profit and loss account. 

 
 An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed unless the loss was caused by a specific 

external event of an exceptional nature that is not expected to recur, and the increase in 
recoverable amount relates clearly to the reversal of the effect of that specific event. 

 
(o) Liabilities and Interest-Bearing Liabilities 
 
 Trade and other payables are stated at cost. Interest-bearing liabilities are recognised initially at 

cost less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing 
borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The difference 
between proceeds and redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss account over the 
period of the borrowings. 
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2.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
 

(p) Employee Benefits  
 
 The equivalent cost of employees' entitlements to unconsumed annual leave as at the end of each 

financial year is accrued and charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which the 
related employment services are rendered. 

 
 Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss 

account when incurred. 
 

 No compensation cost or obligation is recognised when share options are issued under employee 
incentive programmes. When the options are exercised, equity is increased by the amount of the 
proceeds received. 

 
Awards represent the right of a Grantee to receive fully paid shares, their equivalent cash value or 
combinations thereof, free of charge, once the holding restrictions relating to prescribed 
performance target(s) if any are met and/or upon expiry of the prescribed vesting period. The 
compensation cost which is the market value of the shares granted, are charged to the profit and 
loss account on completion of the prescribed performance target(s) or over the prescribed vesting 
period. 

 

(q) Revenue Recognition 
 

Revenue from the sales of equipment is recognised upon completion of installation. Recognition of 
revenue pertaining to the provision of warranty and maintenance services is deferred and 
recognised over the period of warranty or services provision. Revenue from sales of other goods is 
recognised upon completion of delivery.  

 
Service income is recognised over the period in which the services are rendered. Revenue from 
service contracts are recognised based on the percentage-of-completion method. The stage of 
completion is determined by reference to the percentage of actual costs incurred to date to 
estimated total costs to completion for each contract. Cost incurred which have not been invoiced 
to customers are recorded in the work-in-progress account. All known or anticipated losses are 
provided for as soon as they are known.  
 
Commission income is recognised on an accrual basis. 
 
Interest income on finance leases when the Group is the lessor is recognised in the profit and loss 
account based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the Group's net 
investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease over the lease term. 
 
Management fees are recognised on an accrual basis. 
 
Interest income from bank deposits is accrued on a time-apportioned basis. 
 
Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account when the right to receive payment is 
established. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
  

(r) Operating Leases 
 
 Rental payable under operating leases are accounted for in the profit and loss account on a 

straight-line basis over the periods of the respective leases. 
 
 

(s) Finance Costs 
 
 Interest expense and similar charges are expensed in the profit and loss account in the period in 

which they are incurred, except to the extent that they are capitalised as being directly attributable 
to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial 
period of time to be prepared for its intended use or sale. The interest component of finance lease 
payments is recognised in the profit and loss account using the effective interest rate method.  

 
(t) Deferred Tax 
 

Deferred tax is provided in full using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between 
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. 
Temporary differences are not recognised for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and the 
initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit. The amount 
of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the 
carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the 
balance sheet date. 

 
 A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be 

available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.   
 
Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and jointly-controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary 
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in 
the foreseeable future. 

 
  
(u) Dividends 

 
 Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the period in which they are declared. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont'd) 
 

(v) Segment Reporting 
 

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing 
products or services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particular 
economic environment (geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are 
different from those of other segments. 

 
Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business and geographical segments. 
The primary format, business segments, is based on the Group's management and internal 
reporting structure. 

 
Inter-segment pricing is determined on mutually agreed terms. 
 
Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as 
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate 
assets, liabilities and expenses. 

 
(i)  Business Segments 
 

The Group comprises the following main business segments: 
 

Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

: Provision of reclaims solutions including wafer reclaim, parts 
clean and pump refurbishment; facilities management 
services including turnkey facilities hookup, total chemicals, 
gas and abatement management, and turnkey fab relocation; 
test characterisation including qualification and reliability 
testing; distribution of equipment, chemicals and consumable 
products; and provision of technical services and support. 

   
Test & Advanced 

Packaging 
Solutions 

: Provision of bump interconnects for advanced packaging of 
integrated circuits solutions and related services. 

   
Fabless Solutions : Provision of supply chain solutions, design test solutions 

and probe card solutions. 
 

 
(ii)  Geographical Segments 
 

The business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, but the Group operates in 
three principal geographical areas, namely Singapore, other Asean countries and other 
regions. 

 
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based 
on the geographical location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical 
location of the assets.   
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3.   Property, Plant and Equipment 
 

 
 

The Group 
2004 

 
Leasehold 
building 

$'000 

 Leasehold 
improve-

ments 
$'000 

  
Furniture 

and fittings 
$'000 

  
Office 

equipment 
$'000 

  
 

Computers 
$'000 

  
Motor 

vehicles 
$'000 

  
Plant and 
machinery 

$'000 

 Mechanical 
and electrical 

facilities 
$'000 

  
 

Total 
$'000 

 
Cost 

                 

                  
At 1 July 2003 -  988  500  2,744  2,207  43  16,175  5,064  27,721 
                  
Additions  -  35  3  44  88  31  892  -  1,093 
                  
Arising from 
acquisition of 
subsidiaries 2,505  743  57  85  92  219  15,076  -  18,777 

                  
Disposals and 
write-offs -  (81)  (1)  (40)  (1)  -  (3,446)  -  (3,569) 

                  
Translation  
difference   -  (2)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (2) 

                  
At 30 June 2004 2,505  1,683  559  2,833  2,386  293  28,697  5,064  44,020 
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd) 
 

 
 

The Group 
2004 

 
Leasehold 
building 

$'000 

 Leasehold 
improve-

ments 
$'000 

  
Furniture 

and fittings 
$'000 

  
Office 

equipment 
$'000 

  
 

Computers 
$'000 

  
Motor 

vehicles 
$'000 

  
Plant and 
machinery 

$'000 

 Mechanical 
and electrical 

facilities 
$'000 

  
 

Total 
$'000 

                  
Accumulated 
depreciation  
and  
impairment  
losses 

                 

                  
At 1 July 2003 -  267  398  2,236  1,731  43  15,659  5,040  25,374 
                  
Depreciation for 
the year 

 
37 

 
217  38  75  294  20  1,043  10  1,734 

 
Arising from 
acquisition of 
subsidiaries 

 
 
 

805 

 
 
 

157  55  63  72  133  7,241  -  8,526 
 
Reversal of 
impairment   
losses 

 
 
 

- 

 

-  -  -  -  -  (4,650)  -  (4,650) 
 
Disposals and  
write-offs 

 
 

- 

 

(52)  (1)  (39)  -  -  (2,068)  -  (2,160) 
                  
Translation  
difference   -  (1)  -  -  -  -  -  -  (1) 

                  
At 30 June 2004 842  588  490  2,335  2,097  196  17,225  5,050  28,823 
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd)    
 

 
The Group 
2004 

 
Leasehold 
building 

$'000  

Leasehold 
improve-

ments 
$'000  

 
Furniture 

and 
fittings 
$'000  

 
Office 

equipment 
$'000  

 
 

Computers 
$'000  

 
Motor 

vehicles
$'000  

 
Plant and 
machinery 

$'000  

Mechanical 
and electrical 

facilities 
$'000  

 
 

Total 
$'000 

                  
Depreciation 
for 2003 -  

 
178  

 
60  

 
1,424  

 
934  

 
5  

 
1,278  

 
172  

 
4,051 

                  
Impairment 
losses for 
2003 -  

 
 

-  

 
 

161  

 
 
9  

 
 

15  

 
 

-  

 
 

6,900  

 
 

2,967  

 
 

10,052 
                  

Carrying  
amount 

                  
At 30 June 
2004 1,663  1,095  69  498  289  97  11,472  14  15,197 

At 30 June 
2003 

 
- 

  
721   

102   
508   

476   
-   

516   
24   

2,347 
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd) 
 

          
 Leasehold 

improve- 
 Furniture 

and 
  

Office 
  

 
  

The Company ments  fittings  equipment  Computers  Total 
2004 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
          
Cost          
          
At 1 July 2003 768  82  173  1,545  2,568 
Disposals (768)  (13)  (118)  (51)  (950) 
At 30 June 2004 -  69  55  1,494  1,618 
          
Accumulated 

depreciation 
         

          
At 1 July 2003 159  42  62  1,145  1,408 
Depreciation  

for the year 
 

10  
 

18  
 

12  
 

218  
 

258 
Disposals (169)  (3)  (29)  (30)  (231) 
At 30 June 2004 -  57  45  1,333  1,435 
          
Depreciation  

for 2003 
 

128 
  

20 
  

34 
  

817 
  

999 
          
Carrying amount 
 

         

At 30 June 2004 -  12  10  161  183 
At 30 June 2003 609  40  111  400  1,160 
          

 
Leasehold building and plant and machinery of the Group with carrying amounts of $1,663,000 (2003: $Nil) 
and $4,844,000 (2003: $Nil) respectively have been pledged to a bank as security for bank loans (Note 17). 

 
 The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment includes amounts totalling $645,000 (2003: $88,000) for 

the Group and $Nil (2003: $88,000) for the Company in respect of assets acquired under hire purchase 
agreements and finance leases (Note 17). 

  
 Impairment reviews in 2002 and 2003 
 

In the previous years, due to the continued weakness in the semiconductor industry, a subsidiary, Ellipsiz 
MicroFab Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as MicroFab Technology (S) Pte Ltd) initiated impairment reviews in June 
2002 and December 2002. The property, plant and equipment and development expenditure of the subsidiary, 
as a whole, were identified to be a single cash-generating unit.   
 
In June 2002, the estimate of recoverable amount was based on net selling price, determined by an 
independent valuer. The amount of impairment losses was allocated on a pro-rata basis to the assets of the 
cash-generating unit based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. In allocating the impairment 
losses, the carrying amounts of the assets were not reduced below their net selling price. 
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3. Property, Plant and Equipment (cont'd) 
 

Impairment reviews in 2002 and 2003 (cont'd) 
 
In December 2002, further impairment losses were provided to reduce the carrying amounts of the property, 
plant and equipment to $Nil as the subsidiary was projected to incur operating losses in the future and the net 
selling price was estimated to be negligible by the management of the subsidiary in view of the prevailing 
economic situation. 

 
As a result of the reviews, the Group recorded asset impairment losses in relation to property, plant and 
equipment of $5,548,000 and $10,052,000 in 2002 and 2003 respectively. 
 
Impairment review in 2004 
 
In December 2003, following the conclusion of an agreement to dispose part of the plant and equipment, the 
Group reassessed the assets' estimated recoverable amount and $4,650,000 of the impairment losses 
previously recognised was reversed. The amount reversed is included in "Other Operating Income". 
 
The estimate of recoverable amount was based on the difference between the contracted proceeds from the 
disposal and the projected cost to complete the transaction. 

 
 
4. Intangible Assets 
 

 
The Group 
2004 

 Computer 
software 

$'000 

 Development 
expenditure 

$'000 

 Negative 
goodwill 

$'000 

 Positive 
goodwill 

$'000 

  
Total 
$'000 

           
Cost           
           
At 1 July 2003  1,823  3,920  -  -  5,743 
Arising from  

acquisition of  
interest in  
subsidiaries  -  -  (1,618) 

  
  
 

3 

 

(1,615) 
At 30 June 2004  1,823  3,920  (1,618)  3  4,128 
           
Accumulated  

amortisation         
   

 
           
At 1 July 2003  1,579  3,920  -  -  5,499 
Amortisation  

for the year  243  -  
 

(336) 
  

3 
 

 (90) 
At 30 June 2004  1,822  3,920  (336)  3  5,409 
 
Amortisation   

for 2003  1,133  -  
 

- 

 
 

- 

 

1,133 
           
Impairment losses  

for 2003  283  -  
 

- 
  

- 
 

283 
           
Carrying amount 
       

   
 

At 30 June 2004  1  -  (1,282)  -  (1,281) 
At 30 June 2003  244  -  -   -  244 
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4. Intangible Assets (cont'd) 
 

  
The Company 
2004 

    Computer 
software 

$'000 
       
 Cost      
       
 At 1 July 2003 and 30 June 2004     1,823 
       
 Accumulated amortisation 

 
     

 At 1 July 2003     1,579 
 Amortisation for the year     243 
 At 30 June 2004     1,822 
       
 Amortisation for 2003     1,133 
       
 Impairment losses for 2003     283 
       
 Carrying amount 

 
     

 At 30 June 2004     1 
 At 30 June 2003     244 
       

Amortisation is included in the following line items in the profit and loss account: 
 

  ---------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------ 
  

 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

      
Other operating income  (336) - - - 
Administrative expenses  243 1,133 243 1,133 
Other operating expenses  3 - - - 

  (90) 1,133 243 1,133 
 
The Group and the Company – Computer software 
 
The carrying amount of computer software acquired under hire purchase agreements and finance leases 
amounted to $Nil (2003: $25,000) for the Group and the Company. 
 
With reference to the impairment reviews described in Note 3, the Group and the Company reviewed its 
manufacturing software that was solely used by Ellipsiz MicroFab Pte. Ltd. (formerly known as MicroFab 
Technology (S) Pte Ltd) in 2003 and recorded asset impairment losses amounting to $283,000. 
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5.     Subsidiaries  
 

   ------- The Company ------- 
  2004  2003 
 Note $'000  $'000 
     
Investments in subsidiaries  57,798  49,762 

Less:     
Impairment losses     

At beginning of the year  44,360  21,000 
Reclassified from jointly-controlled entity 7 1,732  - 
(Reversal)/charge during the year 22(a)/(c) (987)  23,360 
At end of the year  45,105  44,360 

  12,693  5,402 
 

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: 
  

 
Name of Subsidiary 

 
 
Principal Activities 

Country of 
Incorporation and

Business 

Effective Equity 
held by the 

Group 
    2004 2003 
    % % 
 Antech Instruments Pte Ltd 

  and its subsidiary:- 
Inactive  Singapore 100 100 

      
 * Ellipsiz Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. Sales representation 

services and distribution 
of equipment used in the 
semiconductor industry 

Malaysia 100 100 

      
 Tezt Pulse Pte Ltd Inactive Singapore 100 100 
      

+ Ellipsiz Taiwan Inc., (formerly known 
as CrystalTech Scientific Inc.) 

   and its subsidiary:- 

Dealers of scientific 
instruments, electronics 
equipment, commission 
agents and provision of 
technical services and 
support 

Taiwan 78 69 

      
 # CrystalTech Scientific Corp Trading of scientific and 

electronic equipment 
British Virgin 
Islands 

78 69 

      
# Ellipsiz MicroFab Inc. Inactive United States of 

America 
100 100 

      
 Ellipsiz Singapore Pte Ltd Trading of scientific 

instruments, electronic 
equipment and provision 
of technical services and 
support and commission 
agents 

Singapore 100 100 

      
 Solidvision Pte Ltd  

   and its subsidiary:- 
Inactive Singapore 100 100 

      
 +  Factech Semiconductors Sdn. 

Bhd. 
Provision of total 
chemical management 
services 

Malaysia 100 100 
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5. Subsidiaries (cont'd) 
 

  
 

Name of Subsidiary 

 
 
Principal Activities 

Country of 
Incorporation and 

Business 

Effective Equity 
held by the 

Group 
    2004 2003 
    % % 
 Ellipsiz MicroFab Pte. Ltd. 

(formerly known as 
MicroFab Technology (S) 
Pte Ltd) 

Provision of bump interconnects 
for advanced packaging of 
integrated circuits solutions and 
related services 

Singapore 100 100 

      
 Factech Pte Ltd Inactive Singapore 100 100 
      
 ESI Instruments Pte Ltd Inactive Singapore 100 100 
      

# outsoz.com Inc. Inactive United States of 
America 

100 100 

      
# Ellipsiz USA Inc. Inactive United States of 

America 
100 100 

      
 Ellipsiz Ventures Pte Ltd  

   and its subsidiaries:- 
Investment holding  Singapore 100 100 

      
 #    Ellipsiz Semiconductor 

Technology 
(Shenzhen) Ltd 

Investment holding and 
provision of back end services of 
integrated circuit designing 
 

China 100 - 

 #    Ellipsiz Semilab 
Holdings Pte. Ltd. 

Investment holding 
 

Singapore 100 - 

      
# Ellipsiz (Shanghai) 

International Ltd 
Sales representation services 
and distribution of failure 
analysis equipment and optical 
equipment 

China 100 100 

      
+ Ellipsiz Second Source Inc., 

Taiwan 
Provision of pump refurbishment 
services and trading of original 
equipment and manufacturer 
parts 

Taiwan 100 100 

      
& Ellipsiz ISP Pte. Ltd. 

(formerly known as 
International 
Semiconductor Products 
Pte Ltd) 

Polishing and reclamation of 
semiconductor wafers 

Singapore 67 17 

      
** MicroRoutes Pte Ltd 

("MicroRoutes") 
Inactive Singapore 100 50 

 
The Singapore-incorporated subsidiaries are audited by KPMG Singapore.   

 
* This subsidiary is audited by another firm of auditors, Chew & Co. 

 
# These subsidiaries are not required to be audited for the current year by the laws of the respective countries 

of incorporation.  
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5. Subsidiaries (cont'd)  
 

+ These subsidiaries are audited by other member firms of KPMG International. 
 

& The effective equity in this subsidiary in 2003 was held by an associate. 
 
** MicroRoutes was a jointly-controlled entity in 2003. The Company increased its equity interest from 50% to 

100% during the year. 
 
An application was made on 14 March 2000 to the Malaysian Foreign Investment Committee ("FIC") for Antech 
Instruments Pte Ltd ("Antech") to hold a direct 100% equity interest in Ellipsiz Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. ("EMSB"). 
The application and subsequent appeal to the FIC were rejected and the Company was required to reduce its 
shareholding to 30%. 
 
With the recent change in FIC requirements, Antech is now permitted to hold 70% interest in EMSB. As of the 
date these financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors, Antech is in the final process of 
transferring 30% of its shareholding in EMSB to fulfill FIC requirements. The remaining 70% interest will also be 
transferred to the Company. 
 
 

6. Associates 
       
   -------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------- 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

          
 Investments in associates  4,082  1,289  3,489  1,289 
          
 Impairment losses  -  -  (1,239)  (1,239) 
          
 Share of post-acquisition 

reserves 
  

(1,162) 
  

(1,243) 
  

- 
  

- 
 Exchange translation 

reserve  
  

(19) 
  

- 
  

- 
  

- 
   (1,181)  (1,243)  -  - 
   2,901  46  2,250  50 
          
 Loans to associates  1,813  988  1,813  988 
    Less:         
 Allowance for doubtful 

   loans  
        

 Allowance at  
beginning of the 
year 

  
 

988 

  
 

988 

  
 

988 

  
 

988 
 Allowance reversed 

during the year 
 

22(a) 
 

(475) 
  

- 
  

(475) 
  

- 
 Allowance at end of 

the year 
  

513 
  

988 
  

513 
  

988 
   1,300  -  1,300  - 
   4,201  46  3,550  50 
 

Loans to associates are unsecured and interest-free, and are not expected to be repaid within the next year. 
 



Ellipsiz Ltd  
and its subsidiaries Notes to the Financial Statements 
Annual Report 30 June 2004 
 
 

66 

6.  Associates (cont'd) 
 

  Investments in associates include the following amount of goodwill: 
 

   --------- The Group --------- 
  2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
     

Movement in goodwill during the year:     
At beginning of the year  -  - 
Arising from acquisition of an associate  399  - 
Amortisation for the year  (58)  - 
At end of the year  341  - 

 
       
 Details of the associates are as follows: 

  
 
Name of Associate  

 
 
Principal Activities 

Country of 
Incorporation 
and Business 

 
Effective Equity held 

by the Group 
    2004 2003 
    % % 

      
* Semiconductor Alliance Pte  

  Ltd  
Investment holding  Singapore 45 45 

      
 @ SCP Global Technologies  

  Asia Pte Ltd  
Trading of surface  
preparation equipment  
used in the semiconductor 
industry 

Singapore 49.9 49.9 

      
^ SV Probe Asia Pte Ltd Probe card designing, 

manufacturing and  
distribution solutions for the 
semiconductor industry 

Singapore 40 - 

      
+ Chiron Semilab Pte Ltd Technical testing and 

analyses services 
Singapore 33.3 - 

      
# Fluidix Technology Pte Ltd  Liquidated Singapore - 50 

      
& # Shenzhen IC Design    

Incubation Co., Ltd 
Enterprise incubator 
management, IC design and 
test, and provision of  
technical consulting services 

China 33.3 - 

 
       

# These associates are not required to be audited for the current year by the laws of the respective countries 
of incorporation. 

 
       * This associate is audited by another firm of auditors, Chia, Wong and Partners. 
 
       @ This associate is audited by another firm of auditors, Deloitte & Touche. 
 

  ^ This associate is audited by another firm of auditors, WK & Tham. 
 
   +  This associate is audited by another firm of auditors, Kong, Lim & Partners. 
 

 & This associate is held through Ellipsiz Semiconductor Technology (Shenzhen) Ltd.
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6.  Associates (cont'd) 
 

The Group has not recognised loss relating to certain associates where its share of loss exceed the Group's 
carrying amount of its investments in those associates. The Group's cumulative share of unrecognised loss 
was $504,000 (2003: $322,000), of which $182,000 was the share of the current year's loss (2003: profit of 
$177,000). In 2003, the Group did not recognise its share of the profit of $177,000 as the Group's cumulative 
share of unrecognised loss with respect to the associate was $499,000 as at 30 June 2004. The Group has no 
obligation in respect of the loss. 

 
 
7. Jointly-Controlled Entity 
 
   -------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------- 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

          
 Investments in jointly-

controlled entity 
  

408 
  

1,732 
 

- 
 

1,732 
 Less:       
 Impairment losses       
 At beginning of the year  -  - 1,732 1,732 
 Reclassified to 

subsidiaries 
 

5 
 

- 
  

- 
 

(1,732) 
 

- 
 At end of the year  -  - - 1,732 
   408  1,732 - - 
 Share of post-acquisition 

reserves 
  

(36) 
  

(1,732) 
 

- 
 

- 
   372  - - - 
 
 

Details of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows: 
 
Name of Jointly- 
Controlled Entity 

 
 
Principal Activities 

Country of 
Incorporation 
and Business 

 
Effective Equity held by 

the Group 
    2004 2003 
    % % 

     
*  MicroRoutes Pte Ltd 

("MicroRoutes")  
Inactive Singapore - 50 

     
#  Suzhou Silicon Information 

Technologies Co., Ltd 
Development, production,  
sale and distribution of digital 
internet set-top boxes and 
other similar electrical 
communication devices, 
including provision of  
relevant technical and after 
sale services 

China 50 - 

     
 



Ellipsiz Ltd  
and its subsidiaries Notes to the Financial Statements 
Annual Report 30 June 2004 
 
 

68 

7.  Jointly-Controlled Entity (cont'd) 
 

* During the financial year, MicroRoutes became a wholly-owned subsidiary after the Company increased 
its equity interest from 50% to 100% as reflected in Note 5 to the financial statements. 

 
# This jointly-controlled entity is held through Ellipsiz Ventures Pte Ltd. It is not required to be audited for the 

current year by the law of its country of incorporation. 
 

The Group's share of jointly-controlled entity's results, assets and liabilities is as follows: 
 
 -------- The Group -------- 
 2004  2003 
 $'000  $'000 
Results    
Revenue -  - 
Expenses (36)  - 
Loss from ordinary activities before taxation (36)  - 
Income taxes -  - 
Loss from ordinary activities after taxation (36)  - 
    
Assets and liabilities    
Non-current assets 134  - 
Current assets 244  175 
Current liabilities (6)  (175) 
Net assets 372  - 

    
 
8. Other Assets 
 
   -------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------- 
   

 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

       
 Other investment  2,313 2,313 2,313 2,313 
 Club memberships  189 189 131 131 
   2,502 2,502 2,444 2,444 
    Less:      
 Impairment losses  2,423 2,423 2,369 2,369 
   79 79 75 75 
 
 The impairment losses relating to other investment amount to $2,313,000 (2003: $2,313,000). 
 

The impairment losses of the Group and the Company relating to the club memberships amount to $110,000 
(2003: $110,000) and $56,000 (2003: $56,000) respectively. 
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9. Lease Payments Receivable 
 

 -------- The Group -------- 
 2004  2003 
 $'000  $'000 

    

Net investment in leased equipment:    

Gross investment in leased equipment  -  2,723 

Unearned income -  (156) 

Net investment in leased equipment -  2,567 

    

Represented by:    

    

Lease payments receivable:    

Current portion -  696 

Non-current portion -  1,871 

 -  2,567 
 

 ---------------------- The Group ---------------------- 
 Gross Unearned  Net 
 investment income  investment 
 $'000 $'000  $'000 

2003     
Within 1 year  799 (103)  696 
After 1 year but within 5 years 1,924 (53)  1,871 
 2,723  (156)  2,567 

 
 
10. Inventories 
 

  --------- The Group --------- 
  2004  2003 
 Note $'000  $'000 
     
Raw materials  1,547  367 
Work-in-progress 11 819  83 
Finished goods  2,419  3,950 
Stocks-in-transit  29  1 
  4,814  4,401 

Less:     
Allowance for inventory obsolescence  1,081  1,103 

  3,733  3,298 
 
 In 2003, inventory includes finished goods and work-in-progress stated at net realisable value of $1,350,000 

for the Group. 
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11. Work-in-Progress 
 

 -------- The Group -------- 
 2004  2003 
 Note $'000  $'000 
    

Cost  1,787  66 

Attributable profits 401  17 

Progress billings (1,369)  - 

10 819  83 
 
 
12. Trade and Other Receivables 
 
    -------- The Group --------  -------- The Company -------- 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

        
 Trade receivables       
 - current portion 13 22,644 8,977  - - 
 Tax receivables  1,122 1,303  960 1,140 
 Refundable deposits   424 268  168 168 
 Prepayments  640 964  183 80 
 Grant receivable  - 390  - 202 
 Other receivables  1,310 479  25 354 
   26,140 12,381  1,336 1,944 
 
 
13. Trade Receivables 
 

  -------- The Group -------- 
  2004  2003 
 Note $'000  $'000 
     
Trade receivables  23,388  9,539 
    Less:     
Allowance for doubtful receivables     

Allowance at beginning of the year  562  800 
Allowance made/(reversed) during the year 22(c)/(a)  193  (200) 
Allowance utilised during the year  (210)  (38) 
Allowance at end of the year  545  562 

  22,843  8,977 
     
Represented by:     

Current portion 12 22,644  8,977 
Non-current portion  199  - 

  22,843  8,977 
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14. Balances with Related Parties  
 
   -------- The Group --------  -------- The Company ------- 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

        
 Amounts due from:       
 Subsidiaries       
 -  Non-trade  - - 19,604  17,810 
 Less:       
 Allowance for  

doubtful receivables 
      

 Allowance at  
beginning of the year 

  
- 

 
- 

 
8,099 

  
1,638 

 Allowance (reversed)/ 
made during the year 

22(a)/  
(c) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(3,199) 

  
6,461 

 Allowance at end of  
the year 

  
- 

 
- 

 
4,900 

  
8,099 

   - - 14,704  9,711 
 Associates       
 -  Trade  141 -  -  - 
 -  Non-trade  30 15 -  - 
 Shareholders of a jointly- 

controlled entity 
      

 -  Non-trade  166 - -  - 
 Affiliates       
 -  Trade  204 - -  - 
 -  Non-trade  102 - -  - 
 Less:       
 Allowance for  

doubtful receivables 
      

 Allowance at  
beginning of the year 

  
- 

 
- 

 
- 

  
- 

 Allowance made during 
the year 

 
22(c)  

 
46 

 
- 

 
- 

  
- 

 Allowance at end of  
the year 

  
46 

 
- 

 
- 

  
- 

   597 15 -  - 
   597 15 14,704  9,711 
        
 Amounts due to:       
 Subsidiaries       
 -  Non-trade  - - (42)  (9) 
 Associates       
 -  Trade  (9) - -  - 
 -  Non-trade  (6) - -  - 
 Shareholders        
 -  Non-trade   (1) (5) (1)  - 
 Affiliates       
 -  Trade  (89) - -  - 
   (105) (5) (43)  (9) 
 
 The non-trade balances are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayments. 
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15. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
   -------- The Group --------  -------- The Company -------- 
   

 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

       
 Cash at bank and in 

   hand 
  

17,508 
 

15,568 
 

3,988 
 

6,997 
 Fixed deposits  34,670 17,804 32,491 10,333 
   52,178 33,372 36,479 17,330 
 Fixed deposits held as  

   securities by banks 
  

(3,356) 
 

(1,029) 
  

 Cash and cash  
   equivalents in the  
   statement of cash  
   flows 

  
 
 

48,822 

 
 
 

32,343 

  

 
 The fixed deposits placed with banks as securities relate to bank facilities granted to certain subsidiaries of the 

Group. 
 
 
16. Trade and Other Payables 
 
   -------- The Group --------  -------- The Company -------- 
   2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
       
 Trade payables  7,667 3,009 - - 
 Accrued expenses  7,913 7,336 2,823 3,460 
 Other payables  975 2,748 47 992 
 Deferred income  2,070 43 1,698 - 
   18,625 13,136 4,568 4,452 
  

Included in accrued expenses as at 30 June 2003 was an amount of $2,300,000 relating to the Group’s 
obligation in respect of a grant for a research and development project. Arising from changes in the conditions 
under the grant in the current financial year, the obligation no longer exists and the accrual was reversed. 
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17. Interest-Bearing Borrowings 
 
 This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group's and the Company's interest-bearing 

borrowings. For more information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and currency risk, refer to Note 
28. 
 
(a) Interest-bearing borrowings consist of the following: 

      
   -------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------- 
   

 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

      
 Non-current liabilities     
       
 Secured bank loans  4,801 - - - 
 Unsecured bank loan  667 - - - 
 Obligations under hire 

purchase agreements  
and finance leases 

  
 

134 

 
 

27 

 
 

- 

 
 

27 
   5,602 27 - 27 
      
 Current liabilities     
      
 Secured bank loans 1,250 - -  - 
 Unsecured bank loan 400 - -  - 
 Obligations under hire 

purchase agreements 
and finance leases          

 
 

183 

 
 

1,068 

 
 

17 

  
 

218 
  1,833 1,068 17  218 
 

The bank loans of $7,118,000 (2003: $Nil) from a newly acquired subsidiary comprise the following: 
 

Bank loan 1 of $369,000 and bank loan 2 of $2,882,000 
 
Bank loan 1 bears interest at an average rate of 5.125% per annum and is repayable over 51 monthly 
installments commencing 1 October 2000. 
 
Bank loan 2 bears interest at an average rate of 5.625% per annum and is repayable over 32 monthly 
installments commencing 1 May 2004.  
 
Bank loans 1 and 2 are secured by mortgage over the leasehold building and a fixed charge over certain 
of the plant and machinery of the Group. 
 
In respect of bank loan 2, the subsidiary has given its banker a four year option/warrant to convert up to 
$1,425,000 of the loan into 50,000 ordinary shares of $1 each in the subsidiary at an exercise price of 
$28.50 per share. The availability period for the bank to convert the option/warrant into shares in the 
subsidiary commenced on 18 January 2001 and will expire on 17 January 2005. 

 
Bank loan 3 of $3,867,000 
 
Bank loan 3 relates to a revolving credit facility of $2,800,000 and a term loan of $1,067,000. The 
revolving credit facility and term loan bear interest at an average rate of 2.19% and 2.69% per annum 
respectively. The revolving credit facility is not expected to be repaid in the next 12 months and the term 
loan is repayable over 36 months installments commencing 1 April 2004. Fixed deposit in the name of 
the Company has been pledged to secure this loan facility together with a corporate guarantee provided 
by the Company. 
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17. Interest-Bearing Borrowings (cont'd) 
 
(b) Obligations under hire purchase agreement and finance leases 

 
 -------------------- 2004 --------------------  -------------------- 2003 -------------------- 
 Payment  Interest  Principal  Payment  Interest  Principal 

 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
The Group            
       
Within 1 year 205 22 183 1,101 33 1,068 
After 1 year but 
   within 5 years 

 
151 

 
17 

 
134 

 
27 

 
- 

 
27 

 356 39 317 1,128 33 1,095 
       
The Company       
       
Within 1 year 17 - 17 227 9 218 
After 1 year but 
   within 5 years 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
27 

 
- 

 
27 

 17 - 17 254 9 245 
 
 
18. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities 

 
(a) Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities 
 
 Deferred tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances) are attributable to the following: 

 
 ------- Assets -------  ------ Liabilities ------  -------- Net -------- 
 2004  2003  2004  2003  2004  2003 

 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
The Group       
       
Property, plant and 

equipment  
 

(242) 
 

(279) 
 

654 
 

193 
 

412 
 

(86) 
Inventories (6) (21) - - (6) (21) 
Tax value of loss 

carry-forward 
 

(135) 
 

(235) 
 

- 
 

- 
 

(135) 
 

(235) 
Other items                (2) (10) 40 12 38 2 
Net deferred tax 

(assets)/ 
liabilities   

 
(385) 

 
(545) 

 
694 

 
205 

 
309 

 
(340) 

       
Comprising:       
Deferred tax assets     (310) (533) 
Deferred tax liabilities     619 193 
     309 (340) 
       
The Company       
       
Property, plant 

and equipment   
 

- 
 

- 
 

37 
 

186 
 

37 
 

186 
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18. Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (cont’d) 
 

(b) Unrecognised temporary differences 
 

The following temporary differences have not been recognised: 
 
  -------- The Group -------- 
  2004  2003 
  $'000  $'000 
     
Deductible temporary differences   15,512  22,945 
Tax losses  14,499  14,441 
  30,011  37,386 

 
The tax losses and deductible temporary differences are primarily attributable to subsidiaries operating 
in Singapore and do not expire under current year legislation. The unutilised tax losses are available for 
set-off against future profits subject to compliance with the provisions of Section 37 of the Income Tax 
Act. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable 
that future taxable profit will be available against which the Group can utilise the benefits therefrom. 

 
 
19. Share Capital - The Company 
 

  -------------- 2004 --------------  -------------- 2003 -------------- 
  No. of shares    No. of shares   
  ('000)  $'000  ('000)  $'000 
        
Authorised:        
Ordinary shares of $0.25 
   each 

  
4,000,000 

 
1,000,000 

  
4,000,000 

  
1,000,000 

        
Issued and fully paid:        
Ordinary shares of $0.25 
   each 

  
 

 
 

  
 

  
 

At beginning of the year  198,000 49,500  198,000  49,500 
Issue of ordinary shares for  
   cash 

  
39,000 

 
9,750 

  
- 

  
- 

Issue of ordinary shares 
   pursuant to the exercise of  
   options under the "Ellipsiz  
   Share Option Plan"  

  
 
 

357 

 
 
 

89 

  
 
 

- 

  
 
 

- 
Issue of ordinary shares  
   pursuant to the vesting   
   of awards under the 

"Ellipsiz Restricted Stock 
Plan" 

  
 
 
 

366 

 
 
 
 

92 

  
 
 
 

- 

  
 
 
 

- 
  237,723 59,431  198,000  49,500 
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20. Reserves 
 
  -------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------- 
  2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
         
 Share premium 53,564  37,944  53,564  37,944 
 Capital reserve (11,720)  (11,720)  -  - 
 Exchange translation reserve (249)  (237)  -  - 
 Accumulated losses (29,072)  (37,268)  (48,639)  (56,420) 
  12,523  (11,281)  4,925  (18,476) 
 

The application of the share premium account is governed by Section 69 of the Companies Act, Chapter 50. 
 
 The capital reserve comprises goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries written off against shareholders' 

equity. 
  

The exchange translation reserve of the Group comprises foreign exchange differences arising from the 
translation of the financial statements of foreign entities, whose measurement currency is different from that of 
the Company.  

 
 Accumulated losses of the Group include share of post-acquisition accumulated deficits in respect of 

associates and jointly-controlled entity of $1,198,000 (2003: $2,975,000). 
 
 
21. Revenue 
 
 Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold and services rendered in the normal course of trade. 

The Group's revenue excludes intercompany transactions.   
 
 The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during the financial year is as follows:  
 

  -------- The Group --------  -------- The Company -------- 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
        
Sales of goods 48,426  42,055  -  - 
Service income 18,369  7,634  848  - 
Commission income 2,583  1,454  -  - 
Finance lease interest 

income 166  46  -  - 
Management fees -  -  3,773  5,204 

 69,544  51,189  4,621  5,204 
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22. Profit/(Loss) from Ordinary Activities Before Taxation 
 
Profit/(loss) from ordinary activities before taxation includes the following: 

 
   ------- The Group -------  ------ The Company ------ 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 (a) Other operating 
income 

 

        

 Dividend income 
from subsidiaries 

  
- 

  
- 

  
1,250 

  
5,350 

 Rental income  501  254  701  683 
 Exchange gain, net  -  353  -  19 
 Amortisation of 

deferred income 
 
 

 
- 

  
1,352 

  
- 

  
- 

 Interest income  
  -   banks 

  
107 

  
242 

  
38 

  
42 

   -   affiliate  13  -  -  - 
 Sundry income  418  679  71  436 
 Grant income  191  838  -  349 
 Gain on disposal of  

property, plant and 
equipment 

  
 

- 

  
 

407 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 
 Gain on disposal of 

unquoted equity 
investments  
previously written  
off 

  
 
 
 

- 

  
 
 
 

133 

  
 
 
 

- 

  
 
 
 

133 
 Reversal of 

impairment losses   
for property, plant  
and equipment 

 
 
 
3 

 
 
 

4,650 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

- 

  
 
 

- 

  
 
 

- 
 Reversal of accrual for 

obligation in respect 
of a grant 

 
 

16 

 
 

2,300 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 
 Amortisation of 

negative goodwill 
 
4 

 
336 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

 Allowance reversed 
for: 

        

 -  doubtful loan to an 
associate 

 
6 

 
475 

  
- 

  
475 

  
- 

 -   inventory 
obsolescence 

 
 

 
16 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

 -   doubtful trade 
receivables 

 
13 

 
 - 

  
200 

  
- 

  
- 

 -   doubtful amounts 
due from 
subsidiaries 

 
 

14 

 
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

3,199 

  
 

- 
 Impairment losses 

reversed on  
investments in  
subsidiaries       

 
5 

 
-  

 
-  

 
987  

 
- 

 Reversal of obligations  
for subsidiaries' 
liabilities   

  
 

          -  

  
 

           - 

  
 

 2,454 

  
 

           - 
      9,007       4,458    9,175      7,012 
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22. Profit/(Loss) from Ordinary Activities Before Taxation (cont'd) 
 
  ------- The Group -------  ------ The Company ------ 
  2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 
 

(b) Staff costs 
 

       

 Wages and salaries 10,379  11,560  1,154  1,230 
 Contributions to defined  

contribution plans  
 

830 
  

1,171 
  

115 
  

147 
 Decrease in liability for  

short-term accumulating 
compensated absences   

 
 

(16) 

  
 

(257) 

  
 

(38) 

  
 

(29) 
 Termination benefits -  699  -  - 
 Share awards to employees 467  -  467  - 
 Others 411  793  409  315 
  12,071  13,966  2,107  1,663 

 
     
  ------- The Group -------  ----- The Company ----- 
  2004 

Number 
 2003 

Number 
 2004 

Number 
 2003 

Number 
         
 Number of employees as at  

30 June 
 

288 
  

222 
  

19 
  

16 
 
 
   ------- The Group -------   ------- The Company ------- 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 (c) Other expenses         
          
 Non-audit fees 

    paid to auditors 
    of the Company  

  
 

67 

  
 

63 

  
 

27 

  
 

20 
 Depreciation of 

    property, plant 
    and equipment 

 
 

3 

 
 

1,734 

  
 

4,051 

  
 

258 

  
 

999 
 Allowance made for:         
 
 

-   inventory 
obsolescence 

 
 

 
- 

  
1,103 

  
- 

  
- 

 -   doubtful trade 
receivables 

 
13 

 
193 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

 -   doubtful amounts 
due from 
subsidiaries 

 
 

14 

 
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

6,461 
 -   doubtful amounts   

due from an 
affiliate 

 
14 

 
46  

 
-  

 
-  

 
- 

 Loss on disposal:         
 -   property, plant 

and equipment 
  

5 
  

- 
  

- 
  

- 
 -   intangible assets  -  644  -  644 
 Loss on liquidation of 

an associate 
 
 

 
4 

  
- 

  
7 

  
- 

          



Ellipsiz Ltd  
and its subsidiaries Notes to the Financial Statements 
Annual Report 30 June 2004 
 
 

79 

22. Profit/(Loss) from Ordinary Activities Before Taxation (cont'd) 
 
   ------- The Group -------  ------- The Company ------- 
   

Note 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 (c) Other expenses 
        (cont'd) 

        

          
 Inventories written  

    off  
  

23 
  

21 
  

- 
  

- 
 Research and 

    development costs* 
  

- 
  

621 
  

- 
  

- 
 Amortisation of:         
 -   intangible assets 4 243  1,133  243  1,133 
 -   positive goodwill on 

subsidiary 
 
4 

 
3 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

 -   positive goodwill on 
       associates 

 
6 

 
58 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

 Impairment losses on:          
 -   property, plant 

       and equipment 
 
3 

 
- 

  
10,052 

  
- 

  
- 

 -   intangible assets 4 -  283  -  283 
 -   investments in 

       subsidiaries 
 
5 

 
- 

  
- 

  
- 

  
23,360 

 Exchange loss, net  152  -  12  - 
 Operating lease  

    expenses 
  

1,929 
  

1,954 
  

754 
  

685 
 

* Research and development costs include staff costs of $Nil (2003: $444,000). 
 

(d) Directors' remuneration 
 
 Directors' remuneration is recognised as follows: 

 
   ------- The Group -------  ------ The Company ------ 
   2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
          
 Directors' fees:         
 -   directors of the  

      Company 
  

135 
  

150 
  

135 
  

150 
 Staff costs:         
 -   directors of the  

      Company 
  

1,064 
  

465 
  

1,064 
  

465 
 -   other directors  450  580  -  - 
   1,649  1,195  1,199  615 
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22. Profit/(Loss) from Ordinary Activities Before Taxation (cont'd) 
 

(d) Directors' remuneration (cont'd) 
 

Remuneration, including salaries, fees, bonuses and the value of benefits in kind, earned during the 
year from the Group by the directors of the Company are summarised below: 

 
 2004  2003 
 Number  Number 
    

$500,000 and above 1  - 
$250,000 to $499,999 1  1 
Below $250,000 4  5 

 6  6 
 

 (e)      Finance costs 
 
   ------- The Group -------  ------- The Company ------- 
   

 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

          
 Interest expense:         
 -   hire purchase and 

finance lease 
  

43 
  

42 
  

9 
  

35 
 -   banks  103  210  -  - 
   146  252  9  35 
 
 
23. Income Taxes  
  -------- The Group --------  ------- The Company ------- 
  2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 (a)      Recognised in the profit   

and loss account 
 

       

 Current tax expense/(credit):        
 -   current year 470  (576)  331  1,501 
 -   group relief -  -  (70)  (1,501) 
 -   withholding tax 186  -  186  - 
 -   over provided in prior years (65)  (660)  -  (53) 
  591  (1,236)  447  (53) 
 Deferred tax credit:        
 -   movements in temporary 

differences         
 

1,371 
  

(393) 
  

(132) 
  

(201) 
 -   over provided in prior years    (1)  (70)  -  - 
 -   benefit of tax losses 

recognised  
 

- 
  

(235) 
  

- 
  

- 
 -   utilisation of previously 

unrecognised deferred tax   
assets         

 
 

(1,490) 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 
 -   change in tax rate 8  -  (17)  - 
  (112)  (698)  (149)  (201) 
  

Income tax expense/(credit) 
 

479 
  

(1,934) 
  

298 
  

(254) 
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23. Income Taxes (cont'd) 
 
  ------- The Group -------  ------ The Company ------ 
  2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
 
 
 

(b)  Reconciliation of 
effective tax rate 

 

       

 Profit/(loss) before tax 8,737  (18,177)  8,079  (28,244) 
         
 Income tax using Singapore 

tax rate of 20% (2003: 22%) 
 

1,747 
  

(3,999) 
  

1,616 
  

(6,214) 
 Effect of change in tax rate 8  -  (17)  - 
 Tax rebate (11)  -  (11)  - 
 Effect of different tax rates 

in other countries   
 

67 
  

(44) 
  

- 
  

- 
 Income not subject to tax (165)  -  (1,426)  - 
 Expenses not deductible for tax 

purpose 
 

110 
  

547 
  

20 
  

7,514 
 Utilisation of previously 

unrecognised deferred tax 
assets 

 
 

(1,490) 

  
 

(36) 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 
 Withholding tax  186  -  186  - 
 Deferred tax assets not 

recognised 
 

93 
  

2,328 
  

- 
  

- 
 Over provided in prior years (66)  (730)  -  (53) 
 Tax benefit received on losses 

transferred 
 

- 
  

- 
  

(70) 
  

(1,501) 
  479  (1,934)  298    (254) 
 

Tax benefit is received under the Loss-Transfer System of Group Relief ("Group Relief System") which enable 
current year unutilised tax losses and capital allowances of one company to be set-off against taxable profit of 
another company in the same group. The Group Relief System is effective from financial year ended 30 June 
2002. 

 
One of the newly acquired subsidiaries was granted pioneer status, for a period of eight years under the 
Economic Expansion Incentives (Relief from Income Tax) Act, Chapter 86 (the "Income Tax Act"), for silicon 
wafer polishing and reclamation operations commencing 1 October 1997, subject to compliance with certain 
conditions. 

 
During the pioneer status period, Singapore-resident income from pioneer trade is exempt from income tax, 
subject to compliance with the conditions stated in the pioneer certificate and the Income Tax Act. Income 
derived from non-pioneer activities during the pioneer period, however, is subject to income tax at the 
prevailing enacted rate of tax. 
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24. Earnings Per Share - The Group  
 

  2004  2003 
 $'000  $'000 
    
Basic earnings per share is based on:    
    
Net profit/(loss) for the year 8,196  (15,774) 
 

 No. of shares  No. of shares 
 ('000)  ('000)  
    
Weighted average number of shares 

outstanding during the year 
 

211,000 
  

198,000 
Weighted average number of shares issued    

under share option and share award schemes 295  - 
 211,295  198,000 

 
In 2003, there was no dilutive effect on loss per share as all unissued potential ordinary shares were anti-
dilutive due to the Group making losses. 
 
In calculating diluted earnings per share for 2004, the weighted average number of ordinary shares is adjusted 
for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary shares: 
 

 2004   
 No. of shares   
 ('000)   
    
Weighted average number of shares issued, 

used in the calculation of basic earnings per 
share 

 
 

211,295 

  

Dilutive effect of share options 367   
Dilutive effect of share awards  961   
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

(diluted) 
 

212,623 
  

 
 
25. Equity Compensation Benefits 

 
The "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" were approved and adopted at an 
Extraordinary General Meeting held on 28 November 2001. The "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" enables selected 
employees and non-executive directors of the Group to subscribe for shares in the Company. The "Ellipsiz 
Restricted Stock Plan" enables selected employees and non-executive directors of the Group, other than 
controlling shareholders or their associates, to receive awards in the form of fully paid shares, their equivalent 
cash value or combination thereof, free of charge. 
 
The "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" and "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" are administered by the Remuneration 
Committee. 
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25. Equity Compensation Benefits (cont'd) 
 
Information with respect to the options granted under the "Ellipsiz Share Option Plan" on the unissued ordinary shares of $0.25 each of the Company as at the end of the financial year 
are as follows: 

 
 

   
Number of 

    
Number of 

  Proceeds on exercise of 
options during the year 

 
Market price 

Number of 
option  

 

 
Date of grant 

of options 

 
Exercise 

price 

options 
outstanding 
1 July 2003 

 
Options 
granted 

 
Options 

exercised 

Options 
cancelled/ 

lapsed 

options 
outstanding 
30 June 2004 

Options 
exercisable  
1 July 2003 

Options 
exercisable  

30 June 2004 
 

Credited to 
share 
capital 
$'000 

Credited to 
share 

premium 
$'000 

of shares at 
exercise date 

of option 
 

holders 
30 June 

2004 

 
Exercisable 

period 

              

6 January 2003 $0.25 527,667 - (357,500) - 170,167 - 170,167 89 - $0.35 - $0.69 16 
6/1/2004-
5/1/2008 

 
6 January 2003 

 
$0.25 

 
527,667 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(65,333) 

 
462,334 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
29 

 
6/1/2005-
5/1/2008 

 
6 January 2003 

 
$0.25 

 
200,666 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(32,334) 

 
168,332 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
4 

 
6/1/2006-
5/1/2008 

 
11 March 2004 

 
$0.64 

 
- 

 
1,530,760 

 
- 

 
(100,080) 

 
1,430,680 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
154 

 
11/3/2005- 
10/3/2009 

 
11 March 2004 

 
$0.64 

 
- 

 
1,410,760 

 
- 

 
(100,080) 

 
1,310,680 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
151 

 
11/3/2006- 
10/3/2009 

11 March 2004 
 

$0.64 
 

- 
 

344,080 
 

- 
 

(25,840) 
 

318,240 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

- 
 
- 

 
8 

 
11/3/2007- 
10/3/2009 

              
  1,256,000 3,285,600 (357,500) (323,667) 3,860,433 - 170,167 89 -    
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25. Equity Compensation Benefits (cont'd) 
 
Information with respect to the awards granted under the "Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan" on the unissued ordinary shares of $0.25 each of the Company as at the end of the financial 
year are as follows: 
 

 
 Number of 

awards 
   

Awards 
 

Number of awards 
Proceeds on vesting of awards 

during the year 
 

Market price of 
 

Number of award 
 

Date of grant 
of awards 

outstanding 
1 July 2003 

Awards 
granted 

Awards 
vested 

cancelled/ 
lapsed 

outstanding 
 30 June 2004 

Credited to  
share capital  

$'000 

Credited to  
share premium 

$'000 

shares at vesting 
date of awards 

holders  
30 June 2004 

 
Vesting date 

           
 
6 January 2003 

 
265,833 

 
- 

 
(265,833) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
67 

 
87 

 
$0.58 

 
- 

 
6/1/2004 

 
6 January 2003 

 
265,833 

 
- 

 
- 

 
(36,000) 

 
229,833 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
12 

 
6/1/2005 

 
6 January 2003 

 
107,334 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
107,334 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
3 

 
6/1/2006 

 
11 March 2004 

 
- 

 
100,000 

 
(100,000) 

 
- 

 
- 

 
25 

 
16 

 
$0.41 

 
5 

 
30/6/2004 

 
11 March 2004 

 
- 

 
832,530 

 
- 

 
(3,300) 

 
829,230 

 
- 

 
- 

 
- 

 
49 

 
11/3/2005 

 
11 March 2004 

 
- 

 
832,530 

 
- 

 
(3,300) 

 
829,230 

 
- 

 
-  - 

 
52 

 
11/3/2006 

 
11 March 2004 

 
- 

 
214,540 

 
- 

 
(3,400) 

 

 
211,140 

 
- 

 
-  - 

 
11 

 
11/3/2007 

 639,000 1,979,600 (365,833) (46,000) 2,206,767 92 103  

           
 
 The terms of vesting for awards granted on 6 January 2003 and 11 March 2004 were on fulfillment of employment services with the Group from the date of grant to the vesting date. 
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26. Significant Related Party Transactions  
 

 Significant transactions with related parties, other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, 
are as follows: 

 
 
  -------- The Group -------- 
  2004 

$'000 
 2003 

$'000 
     
 Sales to:    
 -   associates 41  - 
 -   an affiliate* 56  - 
 -   other affiliate 428  - 
 Purchases from:    
 -   associates 498  - 
 -   an affiliate* 1,901  - 
 Commission income receivable from:    
 -   associates 537  263 
 -   an affiliate* 45  - 
 Management fees receivable from:    
 -   a jointly-controlled entity -  30 
 Rental income receivable from:    
 -   associates 65  1 
 -   an affiliate* 12  - 
 -   a jointly-controlled entity -  6 
 Service fee paid to:    
 -   an affiliate* 2  - 
 Remuneration of key management personnel 2,000  1,103 

 
The Group, in normal course of business, transacts with associates and affiliates on terms agreed between 
the parties. 
 
*    This relates to a corporation in which a director has an interest. 
 
 

27. Commitments 
 
(a) Lease Commitments 

 
As at 30 June 2004, commitments of the Group and the Company for minimum lease payments under 
non-cancellable operating leases with terms of more than one year are as follows: 
 

   ------- The Group -------  ------ The Company ------ 
   

 
2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 2004 
$'000 

 2003 
$'000 

 Payable:         
 Within 1 year  1,253  977  624  710 
 After 1 year but  

  within 5 years 
  

1,936 
  

1,967 
  

- 
  

624 
   3,189  2,944  624  1,334 
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27. Commitments (cont'd) 
 
(b)  Proposed Dividends 
 

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed a first and final dividend of 0.6875 cents (2003: 
$Nil) per share less tax at 20% amounting to a net dividend of $1,307,478.  The dividends have not 
been provided for. 
 

(c)  Other Commitments 
 

As at 30 June 2004, the Group is committed to inject $13,200,000 and $1,019,873 in relation to 
additional investments in an associate and a subsidiary respectively, as disclosed in Note 30 to the 
financial statements. 

 
 
28. Financial Instruments 
 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 
 

The principal objective of the Group's treasury policy is the management and control of risks relating to 
earnings and net assets. 
 
The existing primary financial instruments of the Group such as receivables, payables and inter-
company balances meet the definition of financial assets or liabilities. 
 
The main risk arising from the Group's financial instruments are credit risk, interest rate risk and 
currency risk. 

 
(b) Credit risk 
 

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables represent the Group's exposure to credit risk. 
 
The management has evaluated the credit standing of customers with significant outstanding balances 
with the Group as at 30 June 2004. As the majority of them are multinational corporations, the 
management has reasonable grounds to believe that the Group does not have significant credit risk as 
at 30 June 2004. Credit risks arising from sales are evaluated on an on-going basis. The receivables 
are also monitored continually and hence the Group does not expect to incur material credit losses. 
 
The cash and cash equivalents of the Group are placed with reputable banks. 

 
(c) Effective interest rate and repricing analysis 

 
The Group obtains additional financing through bank borrowings and leasing arrangements. The 
Group's policy is to obtain the most favourable interest rates available. 
 
The Group's exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its fixed deposits and finance lease 
receivables and payables. 
 
In respect of interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities, the following table 
indicates their effective interest rates at the balance sheet date and the periods in which they reprice. 
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28. Financial Instruments (cont'd) 
 

(c) Effective interest rate and repricing analysis (cont’d) 
 
  Effective   Fixed interest maturing   
  

The Group 
2004 

interest 
rate 
% 

Floating 
interest 

$'000  

Within 
1 year 
$'000  

1 to 5 
years 
$'000  

 
  Total 
$'000 

          

 Financial Assets         
 Fixed deposits 0.37 -  34,670  -  34,670 

 Trade receivables 6.00 -  -  387  387 
Total  -  34,670  387  35,057 
         

 Financial Liabilities         

 S$ secured bank loans 4.00 6,051  -  -  6,051 

 S$ unsecured bank loan 2.69 1,067  -  -  1,067 

 Obligations under hire 
purchase agreements 
and finance leases 5.89 -  17  300 

 

317 

   7,118  17  300  7,435 
 

2003         
         
Financial Assets         
Fixed deposits 0.68 -  17,804  -  17,804 
Finance lease receivable 4.90 -  -  2,567  2,567 
Total  -  17,804  2,567  20,371 
         
Financial Liabilities         
Obligations under hire 

purchase agreements 
and finance leases 3.80 -  850  245 

 

1,095 
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28. Financial Instruments (cont'd) 
 

(c)   Effective interest rate and repricing analysis (cont’d) 
 
 
  Effective   Fixed interest maturing   
  

The Company 
2004 

interest  
rate 
% 

Floating 
interest 

$'000 

 Within 
1 year 
$'000 

 1 to 5 
years 
$'000 

  
  Total 
$'000 

          

 Financial Assets         
 Fixed deposits 0.26 -  32,491  -  32,491 

         

 Financial Liabilities         

 Obligations under hire 
purchase agreements 
and finance leases 4.31 -  17  - 

 

17 
         

 2003         

          

 Financial Assets         
 Fixed deposits 0.18 -  10,333  -  10,333 

         

 Financial Liabilities         

 Obligations under hire 
purchase agreements 
and finance leases 4.31 -  -  245 

 
 
 

245 
 
(d) Currency risk 
 

The Group has exposure to foreign currency movement on trade receivables, trade payables and cash 
and cash equivalents denominated in foreign currencies. It also incurs foreign currency risk on sales 
and purchases that are denominated in foreign currencies. The currencies giving rise to this risk are 
primarily US dollars and Japanese yen. Currently, the Group does not hedge its foreign currency 
exposure. However the management monitors the exposure closely and will consider hedging 
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.   

 
(e) Fair value 
 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values. 
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29. Segment Reporting 
 
(a) Business Segments 
 

    
  

 
Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

 Test & 
Advanced 
Packaging 
Solutions 

  
 

Fabless 
Solutions  

  
 

Elimi- 
nations 

  
 
 

Consolidated 
 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
Revenue and Expense          
2004          
          
Total revenue 
  from external 
  customers 

 
 

64,966 

  
 

4,578 

  
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

69,544 
Inter-segment  
  revenue 

 
1,671 

  
- 

  
- 

  
(1,671) 

  
- 

 66,637  4,578  -  (1,671)  69,544 
          
Segment results 1,488  6,597  (15)    8,070 
          
Unallocated  
  corporate  
  results 

         
 

652 
Share of results of 
  associates and a   
  jointly-controlled    
  entity 

 
 
 

286 

  
 
 

- 

  
 
 

(245) 

  
 
 

- 

  
 
 

41 
          
Profit from 
  ordinary  
  activities before 
  interest income/ 
  (expense) and  
  taxation 

         
 
 
 
 

8,763 
Interest income         120 
Interest expense         (146) 
Income taxes         (479) 
Minority interests         (62) 
Net profit for the year        8,196 
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29. Segment Reporting (cont'd) 
 

(a) Business Segments (cont'd) 
 

  
 

Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

 Test & 
Advanced 
Packaging 
Solutions 

  
 

Fabless 
Solutions  

  
 

Elimi- 
nations 

  
 
 

Consolidated 
 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
Revenue and Expense          
          
2003          
          
Total revenue 
  from external 
  customers 

 
 

47,854 

  
 

3,323 

  
 

12 

  
 

- 

  
 

51,189 
Inter-segment  
  revenue 

 
205 

  
- 

  
- 

  
(205) 

  
- 

 48,059  3,323  12  (205)  51,189 
          
Segment results 269  (15,915)  (11)  310  (15,347) 
          
Unallocated  
  corporate  
  expenses 

         
 

(2,829) 
Share of results of 
  associates 

 
9 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

  
9 

Loss from 
  ordinary  
  activities before 
  interest income/ 
  (expense) and  
  taxation 

         
 
 
 
 

(18,167) 
Interest income         242 
Interest expense         (252) 
Income taxes         1,934 
Minority interests         469 
Net loss for the year         (15,774) 
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29. Segment Reporting (cont'd) 
 
(a) Business Segments (cont'd) 

 
  

 
Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

 Test & 
Advanced 
Packaging 
Solutions 

  
 

Fabless 
Solutions  

  
 

Elimi- 
nations 

  
 
 

Consolidated 
 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
Assets and Liabilities          

2004          
          
Segment assets 48,504  7,982  20  (828)  55,678 
Unallocated  
    corporate  
    assets 

         
 

40,042 
Investments in 
    associates  

 
978 

  
- 

  
3,223 

  
- 

  
4,201 

Investment in a  
jointly-controlled  
entity 

 
 

- 

  
 

- 

  
 

372 

  
 

- 

  
 

372 
Income tax assets         1,432 
Total assets         101,725 
          
Segment liabilities 12,693  3,299  10  (172)  15,830 
Unallocated  
    corporate  
    liabilities 

         
 

2,900 
Interest-bearing 
    borrowings  

         
7,435 

Income tax liabilities         1,596 
Total liabilities         27,761 
          
2003          
          
Segment assets 33,498  1,408  25  (1,020)  33,911 
Unallocated  
    corporate  
    assets 

         
 

19,089 
Investments in 
    associates  

 
46 

  
- 

  
- 

  
- 

  
46 

Income tax assets         1,836 
Total assets         54,882 
          
Segment liabilities 8,413  3,932  9  (1,020)  11,334 
Unallocated  
    corporate  
    liabilities 

         
 

1,807 
Interest-bearing 
    borrowings  

         
1,095 

Income tax liabilities         1,207 
Total liabilities         15,443 
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29. Segment Reporting (cont'd) 
 
(a) Business Segments (cont'd) 
  

 
Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

 Test & 
Advanced 
Packaging 
Solutions 

  
 

Fabless 
Solutions  

  
 

Elimi- 
nations 

  
 
 

Consolidated 
 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
Capital Expenditure          

2004          
          
Capital expenditure 1,093  -  -  -  1,093 
Corporate         - 
         1,093 
          
2003          
          
Capital expenditure 727  22  3  -  752 
Corporate         672 
         1,424 
        
        
  

 
Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

 Test & 
Advanced 
Packaging 
Solutions 

  
 

Fabless 
Solutions  

  
 
 

Consolidated 
 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
        
Significant Non-Cash Item        

2004        
        
Depreciation of property, plant 

and equipment: 
       

-   allocated to business segments 1,566  15  3  1,584 
-   unallocated corporate expenses       150 

       1,734 
Reversal of impairment losses for         

property, plant and equipment -  (4,650)  -  (4,650) 
        
Loss on disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 5  -  -  5 
        
Amortisation of negative goodwill (336)  -  -  (336) 
        
Amortisation of intangible assets:        
-   allocated to business segments 61  -  -  61 
-   unallocated corporate expenses       243 
       304 
        
Reversal of allowance for doubtful  

loan to an associate 
 

(475) 
  

- 
  

- 
  

(475) 
        
Grant income (98)  (93)  -  (191) 
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29. Segment Reporting (cont'd) 
 
(a) Business Segments (cont'd) 

     
  

 
Wafer Fab 
Solutions 

 Test & 
Advanced 
Packaging 
Solutions 

  
 

Fabless 
Solutions  

  
 
 
Consolidated 

 $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
Significant Non-Cash Item        

2003        
        
Depreciation of property, plant 
  and equipment: 

       

  -   allocated to business segments 2,227  1,486  24  3,737 
  -   unallocated corporate expenses       314 
       4,051 
Impairment losses incurred on:        
-    property, plant and equipment -  10,052  -  10,052 
-    intangible assets -  283  -  283 
        
Loss on disposal of intangible 
  assets 

       
644 

        
Gain on disposal of property, plant 
  and equipment 

 
27 

  
(434) 

  
- 

  
(407) 

        
Amortisation of intangible assets:        
-   allocated to business segments 832  141  28  1,001 
-   unallocated corporate expenses       132 
       1,133 
        
Grant income        
-   allocated to business segments -  (489)  -  (489) 
-   unallocated corporate income       (349) 
Amortisation of deferred income -  (1,352)  -  (1,352) 
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29. Segment Reporting (cont'd) 
 

(b) Geographical Segments 
 

   
 

Singapore 

  
Other Asean 

Countries 

  
Other 

Regions 

  
Elimi- 

nations 

  
 

Consolidated 
  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000  $'000 
2004 
 

          

Total revenue from 
external customers 

  
34,085 

  
12,587 

  
22,872 

    
69,544 

           
Segment assets  70,003  6,188  19,529    95,720 
Investments in 

associates 
  

3,575 
  

- 
  

626 
    

4,201 
Investment in a jointly-

controlled entity 
  

- 
  

- 
  

372 
  

 
  

372 
Income tax assets          1,432 
  73,578  6,188  20,527    101,725 
Capital expenditure  342  10  741    1,093 
           
2003 
 

          

Total revenue from 
external customers 

  
28,143 

  
11,043 

  
12,003 

    
51,189 

           
Segment assets  34,430  5,713  12,912  (55)  53,000 
Investments in 

associates 
  

46 
  

- 
  

- 
  

- 
  

46 
Income tax assets          1,836 
  34,476  5,713  12,912  (55)  54,882 
Capital expenditure  1,093  49  282    1,424 
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30. Subsequent Events 
 

The Company: 
 
(a) entered into a supplemental agreement on 28 June 2004 to further invest in the business of its 

associate, SV Probe Asia Pte Ltd ("SV Probe Asia"). The total additional investments in SV Probe 
Asia, in the form of inter alia, equity and convertible shareholder loans, amounting to $13,200,000 
was made subsequent to the year end. This increased the Company’s interest in SV Probe Asia from 
40% to 50%. In accordance with the supplemental agreement, the Company is able to exercise board 
control of SV Probe Asia after the completion of the capital injection, and hence the directors will 
consider SV Probe Asia a subsidiary of the Company. 

 
Pursuant to the supplemental agreement, SV Probe Asia has acquired 100% interest in SV Probe 
Inc., a company incorporated in the United States. SV Probe Asia’s interest of US$10,000,000 in SV 
Probe Inc. was partly paid in cash and partly in equity of SV Probe Asia; 
 

(b) further increased the paid up capital of its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ellipsiz (Shanghai) International 
Ltd, from US$200,000 to US$520,000 subsequent to the year end; and 

 
(c) incorporated a new subsidiary, Ellipsiz Test Pte. Ltd. in Singapore to provide semiconductor 

packaging and testing services. The investment amounted to US$10,000,000, comprising 20,000,000 
ordinary shares of par value US$0.10 each and 40,000,000 Class A Preference Shares of par value 
US$0.10 each, at a premium of US$0.10 per share. 

 
Pursuant to a Shareholders' Agreement on 28 May 2004, Ellipsiz Ventures Pte Ltd ("Ellipsiz Ventures") 
further injected $1,019,873 in Ellipsiz Semilab Holdings Pte. Ltd. ("ESHPL") subsequent to the balance 
sheet date. After the completion of capital injection exercise, Ellipsiz Ventures' interest in ESHPL was 
diluted to 74.27%. 
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Authorised Share Capital : S$1,000,000,000
Issued and Paid Up Capital : S$59,430,833.25
Class of Shares : Ordinary Shares of S$0.25 each
Voting Rights : On a show of hands :   1 vote

: On a poll :   1 vote for each ordinary share

Analysis of Shareholdings by Range as at 8 September 2004

No. of % of % of issued
Range of shareholdings shareholders shareholders No. of shares share capital

1 to 999 10 0.21 3,690 0.00
1,000 to 10,000 3,063 65.62 14,312,895 6.02
10,001 to 1,000,000 1,571 33.66 72,108,312 30.33
1,000,001 AND ABOVE 24 0.51 151,298,436 63.65

TOTAL 4,668 100.00 237,723,333 100.00

As at 8 September 2004, approximately 60.17% of the issued share capital of the Company is held in the hands of the public and Rule 723
of the Listing Manual has been complied with.

Top 20 Shareholders as at 8 September 2004

% of issued
No. Name of shareholders No. of shares share capital

1 CHONG FOOK CHOY 28,250,320 11.88
2 HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 17,139,000 7.21
3 HAY SOOK ANN 16,436,412 6.91
4 3I GROUP PLC 14,521,920 6.11
5 CITIBANK NOMINEES S’PORE PTE LTD 9,200,000 3.87
6 WATERWORTH PTE LTD 9,000,000 3.79
7 DBS NOMINEES PTE LTD 7,156,000 3.01
8 NG BENG SOON 6,111,216 2.57
9 PAO NING YU 4,390,416 1.85
10 PLE INVESTMENTS PTE LTD 4,357,168 1.83
11 UOB KAY HIAN PTE LTD 4,343,000 1.83
12 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 3,540,000 1.49
13 DBS VICKERS SECURITIES (S) PTE LTD 3,467,000 1.46
14 MORGAN STANLEY ASIA (S’PORE) PTE LTD 3,242,000 1.36
15 OCBC SECURITIES PRIVATE LTD 2,769,000 1.17
16 3I APTECH NOMINEES LIMITED 2,612,140 1.10
17 OVERSEA-CHINESE BANK NOMINEES PTE LTD 2,446,000 1.03
18 KIM ENG SECURITIES PTE LTD 2,170,000 0.91
19 PHILLIP SECURITIES PTE LTD 2,166,000 0.91
20 YANG SIOK HUM 2,039,000 0.86

TOTAL 145,356,592 61.15

Substantial Shareholders as at 8 September 2004
(As shown in the Company’s Register of Substantial Shareholders)

Shareholdings Shareholdings
Shareholdings held by the in which the

registered in substantial substantial
the name of shareholders shareholders

the substantial in the name are deemed to % of issued
Name of shareholders shareholders of nominees be interested Total share capital

CHONG FOOK CHOY 28,250,320 - - 28,250,320 11.88
HSBC (SINGAPORE) NOMINEES PTE LTD 17,139,000 - - 17,139,000 7.21
3I GROUP PLC 14,521,920 - 2,612,140 17,134,060 7.21
HAY SOOK ANN 16,436,412 - - 16,436,412 6.91
AEGIS PORTFOLIO MANAGERS PTE LTD - 14,860,000 - 14,860,000 6.25
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 9th Annual General Meeting of Ellipsiz Ltd (the “Company”) will be held at No. 29 Woodlands
Industrial Park E1, Lobby 1, #04-01/06 NorthTech, Singapore 757716 on Wednesday, 20th October 2004 at 4.00p.m. to transact the
following businesses as:-

Ordinary Business

1. To receive and adopt the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year ended
30th June 2004, together with the Auditors’ Report thereon. (Resolution 1)

2. To declare a first and final dividend of 0.6875 cents per ordinary share of S$0.25 each, less income tax of 20% in respect of the
financial year ended 30th June 2004. (Resolution 2)

3. To re-elect the following directors, who are retiring in accordance with Article 91 of the Company’s Articles of Association, and who,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election:-

(i) Dr. Foo See Liang (Independent Director/Non-Executive Director); and (Resolution 3)

(ii) Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin (Independent Director/Non-Executive Director). (Resolution 4)

4. To approve Directors’ fees of S$135,416.67 for the financial year ended 30th June 2004 (2003: S$150,000.00). (Resolution 5)

5. To appoint KPMG as the Company’s Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration. (Resolution 6)

6. To transact any other ordinary business that may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting. (Resolution 7)

Special Business

7. To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolutions:

Authority to allot and issue new shares

“That the Directors be and are hereby authorised pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, and
subject to the Company’s Articles of Association and the rules and regulations of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited,
to allot and issue shares and convertible securities in the capital of the Company on such terms and conditions and with such rights
or restrictions as they may, in their absolute discretion, deem fit PROVIDED ALWAYS THAT the aggregate number of shares and
convertible securities to be issued pursuant to this resolution shall not exceed fifty per cent (50%) of the Company’s issued share
capital at the time of the passing of this resolution, of which the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued
other than on a pro-rata basis to shareholders of the Company does not exceed twenty per cent (20%) of the Company’s issued
share capital and that such authority shall, unless revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, continue in force until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or the date by which such Annual General Meeting is required by
law to be held, whichever is the earlier.”
 [See Explanatory note(i)]  (Resolution 8)
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8. Authority to allot and issue shares under the Ellipsiz Share Option Plan and the Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan.

That pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50, the Directors be empowered to (i) grant options and to allot and issue
shares in the capital of the Company to the holders of options upon the exercise of such options pursuant to and in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Ellipsiz Share Option Plan (“ESOP”) and (ii) grant awards and to allot and issue shares in the capital
of the Company to employees and executive directors of the Company upon the vesting of such awards in accordance with the terms
and conditions of the Elllipsiz Restricted Stock Plan (“ERSP”) provided always that the aggregate number of additional ordinary
shares to be allotted and issued pursuant to the ESOP and ERSP shall not exceed fifteen per centum (15%) of the issued share
capital of the Company for the time being.
[See Explanatory note(ii)] (Resolution 9)

Dated:  5 October 2004

By Order of the Board

Anne Choo and Chan Yuen Leng
Joint Company Secretaries
Singapore

Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint not more than two proxies to attend and vote
in his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify on each instrument of
proxy the number of shares in respect of which the appointment is made, failing which the appointment shall be deemed to be in the
alternative. A member of the Company which is a corporation is entitled to appoint its authorised representative or proxy to vote on its
behalf. If the member is a corporation, the instrument appointing the proxy or representative must be under seal or the hand of an officer or
attorney duly authorised. The instrument appointing a proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at No. 29 Woodlands
Industrial Park E1, Lobby 1, #04-01/06 NorthTech, Singapore 757716 not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the Meeting.

Explanatory Notes:

(i). The Ordinary Resolution 8 proposed in item 7 above, if passed, will empower the Directors from the date of the above meeting until
the next Annual General Meeting to allot and issue shares and convertible securities of the Company.  The number of shares and
convertible securities that the Directors may allot and issue under this resolution would not exceed fifty per cent (50%) of the total
issued share capital of the Company at the time of the passing of this resolution.   For issue of shares and convertible securities other
than on a pro rata basis to all shareholders, the aggregate number of shares and convertible securities to be issued shall not exceed
twenty per cent (20%) of the issued share capital of the Company. This authority will, unless previously revoked or varied at a
general meeting, expire at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company or such time when the next Annual General Meeting is
required to be held under the Companies Act, Cap. 50.

The percentage of issued capital is based on the Company’s issued capital at the time this proposed Ordinary Resolution is passed
after adjusting for (a) new shares arising from the conversion of convertible securities or employee share options on issue at the time
this proposed resolution is passed and (b) any subsequent consolidations or subdivision of shares.

(ii). The Ordinary Resolution 9 proposed in item 8 above, if passed, will empower the Directors of the Company, from the date of the
above meeting until the next Annual General Meeting, to allot and issue shares in the Company of up to a number not exceeding in
total fifteen per centum (15%) of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time pursuant to the exercise of the options
under the ESOP and the vesting of awards under the ERSP.



IMPORTANT:
1. For investors who have used their CPF monies to buy shares in

the capital of Ellipsiz Ltd, this Proxy Form is forwarded to them
at the request of their CPF Approved Nominees and is sent
solely FOR INFORMATION ONLY.

2. This Proxy Form is not valid for use by CPF Investors and shall
be ineffective for all intents and purposes if used or purported
to be used by them.

I/We,    NRIC No.

of  

being *a member/members of ELLIPSIZ LTD (the “Company”), hereby appoint:

No. Resolution For Against

Ordinary Business

1. Adoption of the Directors’ Report and Audited Accounts of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the financial year ended 30th June 2004, together with Auditors’ Report thereon.

2. Approval of first and final dividend of 0.6875 cents per ordinary share of S$0.25 each,
less income tax of 20% in respect of the financial year ended 30th June 2004.

3. Re-election of Dr. Foo See Liang as Director under Article 91.

4. Re-election of Mr. Matthew Chan Chung Shin as Director under Article 91.

5. Approval of Directors’ fees of S$135,416.67 for financial year ended 30th June 2004.

6. Re-appointment of KPMG as Auditors and to authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration.

7. Any other ordinary business that may be transacted at an Annual General Meeting.

Special Business

8. Authority to allot and issue new shares.

9. Authority to grant options and issue shares under the Ellipsiz Share Option Plan and
to grant awards and issue shares under the Ellipsiz Restricted Stock Plan.

Dated this  day of  2004.

and/or (delete as appropriate)

NRIC/Passport Proportion of
Name Address Number Shareholdings (%)

NRIC/Passport Proportion of
Name Address Number Shareholdings (%)

or failing the person, or either or both of the persons, referred to above, the Chairman of the Meeting, as my/our proxy/proxies to attend and to vote
for me/us on my/our behalf and, if necessary, to demand a poll, at the 9th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at No. 29
Woodlands Industrial Park E1, Lobby 1, #04-01/06 NorthTech on Wednesday, 20th October 2004 at 4.00p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

(Please indicate with an “X” in the spaces provided whether you wish your vote(s) to be cast for or against the resolutions as set out in the
Notice of 9th Annual General Meeting. In the absence of specific directions, your proxy/proxies will vote or abstain from voting as he/they may think
fit as he/they will on any other matters arising at the 9th Annual General Meeting.)

Total Number of
Ordinary Shares held:

(a) CDP Register

(b) Register of Members

Signature(s) of Member(s) or Common Seal
* delete as appropriate

IMPORTANT: PLEASE READ NOTES OVERLEAF
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Notes:

1. If you have Ordinary Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register (as defined in Section 130A of the Companies Act,
Cap. 50 of Singapore), you should insert that number of Ordinary Shares.  If you have Ordinary Shares registered in your name in the
Register of Members, you should insert that number of Ordinary Shares.  If you have Ordinary Shares entered against your name in
the Depository Register and Ordinary Shares registered in your name in the Register of Members, you should insert the aggregate
number of Ordinary Shares entered against your name in the Depository Register and registered in your name in the Register of
Members.  If no number is inserted, the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies shall be deemed to relate to all the Ordinary Shares
in the capital of the Company held by you.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint one or two proxies to
attend and vote in his stead. A proxy need not be a member.

3. Where a member appoints two proxies, he shall specify the proportion of his shareholding (expressed as a percentage of the whole)
to be represented by each proxy. If no such proportion is specified, the first named proxy shall be treated as representing 100 per cent
of the shareholding and any second named proxy as an alternative to the first named.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at No. 29 Woodlands
Industrial Park E1, Lobby 1, #04-01/06 NorthTech, Singapore 757716 not later than 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the
Annual General Meeting.

5. This instrument appointing a proxy or proxies must be under the hand of the appointor or his attorney duly authorized in writing.
Where the instrument appointing a proxy or proxies is executed by a corporation, it must be executed either under its seal or under
the hand of any officer or attorney duly authorized.

6. A corporation which is a member may also authorize by resolution of its directors or other governing body, such person as it thinks
fit to act as its representative at the Annual General Meeting in accordance with Section 179 of the Companies Act, Cap. 50 of
Singapore.

7. The Company shall be entitled to reject this instrument appointing a proxy or proxies if it is incomplete, improperly completed or
illegible or where the true intentions of the appointor are not ascertainable from the instructions of the appointor specified in the
instrument appointing a proxy or proxies.

8. In the case of members whose Ordinary Shares are entered against their names in the Depository Register, the Company may reject
any instrument appointing a proxy or proxies lodged if such members are not shown to have Ordinary Shares entered against their
names in the Depository Register as at 48 hours before the time fixed for holding the Annual General Meeting as certified by the
CDP to the Company.
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Corporate Directory

Singapore

Ellipsiz Ltd  – Corporate Office
(Reg. No. 199408329R)
29 Woodlands Industrial Park E1
#04-01/06
NorthTech Lobby 1
Singapore 757716
Tel: (65) 6311 8500
Fax: (65) 6269 2628

Ellipsiz Singapore Pte Ltd
29 Woodlands Industrial Park E1
#04-01/06
NorthTech Lobby 1
Singapore 757716
Tel: (65) 6311 8500
Fax: (65) 6269 0838

Ellipsiz MicroFab Pte Ltd
(formerly known as
MicroFab Technology (S) Pte Ltd)
29 Woodlands Industrial Park E1
#04-01/06
NorthTech Lobby 1
Singapore 757716
Tel: (65) 6311 8500
Fax: (65) 6269 2628

Ellipsiz ISP Pte Ltd
(formerly known as International
Semiconductor Products Pte Ltd)
12 Joo Koon Crescent
Singapore 629013
Tel: (65) 6863 1500
Fax: (65) 6863 1700

Ellipsiz Test Pte Ltd
2 Woodlands Sector 1
#03-20 Woodlands Spectrum
Singapore 738068
Tel: (65) 6262 5260
Fax: (65) 6268 8297

Ellipsiz Ventures Pte Ltd
29 Woodlands Industrial Park E1
#04-01/06
NorthTech Lobby 1
Singapore 757716
Tel: (65) 6311 8500
Fax: (65) 6269 2628

SV Probe Pte Ltd
(formerly known as
SV Probe Asia Pte Ltd)
29 Woodlands Industrial Park E1
#04-01 NorthTech Lobby 1
Singapore 757716
Tel: (65) 6769 8233
Fax: (65) 6765 8183

Malaysia

Ellipsiz Malaysia Sdn Bhd
(Penang – Malaysia head office)
25, 1st Floor, Lorong Helang 2
11700 Sungai Dua, Gelugor
Penang, Malaysia
Tel: (60) 4 659 2035
Fax: (60) 4 659 0175

Ellipsiz Malaysia Sdn Bhd
(Kuala Lumpur – Malaysia branch office)
15B & 15C, Jalan Kenari 8
Puchong Jaya, 47100 Puchong
Selangor Darul Ehsan
Malaysia
Tel: (60) 3 8075 2035
Fax: (60) 3 8075 3104

Factech Semiconductors Sdn Bhd
Lot 9706, 1st Floor
Section 64 KTLD, Jalan Pending
93450 Kuching
Sarawak, Malaysia
Tel: (60) 82 484922
Fax: (60) 82 484966

China

Ellipsiz (Shanghai) International Ltd
4/F, Bio-Tech Building
149 Chun Xiao Rd
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong
Shanghai 201203
P.R. China
Tel : (86) 21 50270969
Fax: (86) 21 50270968

Ellipsiz SemiLab (Shanghai) Co, Ltd
1st Floor, Main Building
149 Chun Xiao Road
Zhangjiang Hi-Tech Park, Pudong
Shanghai 201203
P.R. China
Tel: (86) 21 50270502
Fax: (86) 21 50802701

Ellipsiz Semiconductor Technology
(Shenzhen) Ltd
West 3 Floor Room W320,
IER Building, South Area Shenzhen
Hi-Tech Industrial Park, Shenzhen
P.R. China
Tel: (86) 755 26984682
Fax: (86) 755 26984656

Taiwan

Ellipsiz Taiwan Second Source Inc

Ellipsiz Taiwan Inc
No. 251 Jen-Ru Road
Junan, Miaoli Hsien
Taiwan 350
Tel: (886) 37 461080
Fax: (886) 37 463360

SV Probe Taiwan, Co, Ltd
No. 163, Sec. II Dong Da Road
Hsinchu City, Taiwan
Tel: (886) 35 350408
Fax: (886) 35 422558

Vietnam

SV Probe Vietnam, Co, Ltd
18 Dai Lo Doc Lap
Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park
Thuan An Dist, Binh
Binh Duong Province, Vietnam
Tel: (84) 650 784301/2/3
Fax: (84) 650 784304

U.S.A

SV Probe Inc
6680 Via Del Oro
San Jose, CA 95119
Tel: (1) 408 360 9455
Fax: (1) 408 360 9726



Ellipsiz Ltd
(Reg. No. 199408329R)

29 W oodlands Industrial Park E1
#04-01/06 NorthTech Lobby 1
Singapore 757716
Tel : (65) 6311 8500
Fax : (65) 6269 2628
Email : information@ellipsiz.com
Website : www.ellipsiz.com
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